
NOTE: The City will make reasonable accommodations for anyone attending this meeting who require special 
assistance for hearing, physical or other impairments.  Please contact the City Clerk at (208) 769-2231 at least 24 

hours in advance of the meeting date and time. 
 

City Council Agenda July 1, 2014   1 
 

WELCOME 
To a Regular Meeting of the 

Coeur d'Alene City Council 
Held in the Library Community Room 

 
  

VISION STATEMENT 
 

Our vision of Coeur d’Alene is of a beautiful, safe city that promotes a high quality of life 
and sound economy through excellence in government. 

 

 
The purpose of the Agenda is to assist the Council and interested citizens in the conduct of the 
public meeting.  Careful review of the Agenda is encouraged.  Testimony from the public will be 
solicited for any item or issue listed under the category of Public Hearings.  Any individual who 
wishes to address the Council on any other subject should plan to speak when Item F - Public 
Comments is identified by the Mayor.  The Mayor and Council will not normally allow 
audience participation at any other time. 
 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                            JULY 1, 2014 
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                                              
                                  
B.   INVOCATION:  Pastor Paul Van Noy, Candlelight Church  
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
                       
D.  AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:  Any items added less than forty eight (48) hours 

prior to the meeting are added by Council motion at this time. 
 
E.  PRESENTATION: 
 

1. Student Representative Experience 
Presented by:  Gabby Olscamp 

 
2. Proclamation:  Parks Day July 12, 2014 

Presented by:  Katie Kosanke, Urban Forestry Coordinator 
 

3. McEuen Park Update 
Presented by:  Gordon Dobler, City Engineer 

 
4. Presentation of the Quarterly Budget Update 

Presented by: Vonnie Jensen, Deputy Finance Director 



 

City Council Agenda July 1, 2014   2 
 

F.   PUBLIC COMMENTS:     (Each speaker will be allowed a maximum of 3 minutes to 
address the City Council on matters that relate to City government business.  Please be 
advised that the City Council can only take official action this evening for those items listed 
on the agenda.)  

 
G.  CONSENT CALENDAR:  Being considered routine by the City Council, these items will be 

enacted by one motion unless requested by a Councilman or a citizen that one or more items be 
removed for later discussion. 
1. Approval of Council Minutes for June 17, 2014.  
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted. 
3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for July 7, 2014 at 

12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively. 
4. Approval of Beer and Wine License for TAF, LLC. d/b/a The Coeur d’Alene’s; 1116 

Ironwood Parkway, Troy Fausett  (new)   
As Recommended by the City Clerk 

5. Approval of Beer and Wine License for Blazin’ Wings d/b/a Buffalo Wild; 405 W. 
Neider Avenue, Buffalo Wild Wing, Inc. et al.  (transfer from Sully’s Pub)   

As Recommended by the City Clerk 
6. Approval of S-4-12, North Idaho College – Final Plat. 

As Recommended by the City Engineer 
7. Approval of Resolution No. 14-026 

a. Approval of S-2.03.m.1, Landings @ Waterford 12th Addition, Final Plat, Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Bond Security. 

As Recommended by the City Engineer 
b. Approval of SS-5-14, Interstate Addition, Final Plat, Subdivision Improvement 

Agreement and Security. 
As Recommended by the City Engineer 

c. Lease Agreement with the Hinderer Concessions for McEuen Park Harbor House 
concessions for the 2014 season.  

As Recommended by Public Works 
d. Contract with Buddy’s Backhoe Service for the 2014 Open Trench Project.  

As Recommended by Public Works 
e. Agreement with Handshake Productions for the summer concert series in the City 

Park.  
As Recommended by Public Works 

f. Agreement with North Idaho College for employment of School Resource Officers 
for the Districts Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  

As Recommended by Public Works 
g. Agreement with Coeur d’Alene School District #271 for employment of School 

Resource Officers for the Districts Fiscal Year 2014-2015.   
As Recommended by Public Works 

 
Motion by _________________, seconded by _____________ to approve the Consent Calendar as 
presented, including Resolution No. 14-026. 
*If a Councilman does not do so, ask the City Clerk to list the resolution items 
*DISCUSSION 



 

City Council Agenda July 1, 2014   3 
 

*ROLL CALL:  McEvers __; Gookin___; Miller __; Evans ___, Adams __. 
*Motion carried/failed 
 
G.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

1. City Council 
2. Mayor  

a. Appointment of Student Representatives:  Maxwell Evans and Maya Burgess 
(Alternate) to the Parks and Recreation Commission; Ashley Kaitz, and Jade 
Douglas (Alternate) to the Arts Commission; Cole O’Brien (reappointment), and 
Christian Cousins (Alternate) to the Planning Commission; Cassidee Smidt and 
Sydney Jackson (Alternate) to the Library Board; Mary McKenna Sudahl and 
Jaquar Ashtiani (Alternate) to the Pedestrian Bicycle Committee; Timber 
Lockhart to the Urban Forestry Committee; and Riley Ellingsen (Reappointment) 
and Madeline Hennig (alternate) to the Natural Open Space Committee. 

 
Motion by __________, seconded by ______________ to appoint Maxwell Evans and Maya 
Burgess (Alternate) to the Parks and Recreation Commission; Ashley Kaitz, and Jade Douglas 
(Alternate) to the Arts Commission; Cole O’Brien (reappointment), and Christian Cousins 
(Alternate) to the Planning Commission; Cassidee Smidt and Sydney Jackson (Alternate) to the 
Library Board; Mary McKenna Sudahl and Jaquar Ashtiani (Alternate) to the Pedestrian Bicycle 
Committee; Timber Lockhart to the Urban Forestry Committee; and Riley Ellingsen 
(Reappointment) and Madeline Hennig (alternate) to the Natural Open Space Committee.   
*Discussion 
*All in favor/opposed 
*Motion carried/failed 
 
3. Administrator's Report 
 

H.  PUBLIC WORKS 
 

1. Approval of a Request to Exclude (De-Annex) Property from City Boundaries; 7635 N. 
Ramsey Road. 

 
Motion by _____________, seconded by ___________ to approve the Request to Exclude 
(De-Annex) Property from City Boundaries; 7635 N. Ramsey Road, and direct staff to 
prepare an Ordinance.  

*All in favor/opposed 
*Motion carried/failed 
 

I.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. Resolution No. 14-027 Approval of an Agreement with Welch Comer for the Four-
corners BLM Corridor Master Plan and funding. 

Staff Report by Bill Greenwood, Interim Parks Director 



 

City Council Agenda July 1, 2014   4 
 

Motion by _________________, seconded by _____________ to Resolution No. 14-027, approving 
an Agreement with Welch Comer for the Four-corners BLM Corridor Master Plan and funding.  
*DISCUSSION 
*ROLL CALL:  Gookin___; Miller __; Evans ___; Adams __; McEvers __. 
*Motion carried/failed 
 

2. Discussion of Sound Study conducted by JGL Acoustics, Inc. re: Doyle’s Warehouse.    
Presentation by Mike Gridley, City Attorney 

 
J. EXECUTIVE SESSION:   Motion by _________________, seconded by _____________ to 
enter into Executive Session as provided by Idaho Code 67-2345 (1) § (c) To conduct deliberations 
concerning labor negotiations or to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned by a public 
agency.  
*DISCUSSION 
*ROLL CALL:  Miller __; Evans ___; Adams __; McEvers __; Gookin __. 
*Motion carried/failed 
 
K.  ADJOURN:  Motion by ____________, seconded by _____________ that, there being no 
further business before the Council, this meeting be adjourned. 
*All in favor/opposed   
*Motion carried 



   July 1, 2014

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor   

Councilmen Adams, Edinger, Evans, Gookin, McEvers, Miller



PRESENTATIONS 





CONSENT CALENDAR 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

June 17, 2014 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room June 17, 2014 at 6:00 p.m., there being 
present upon roll call the following members: 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
  
Woody McEvers                  )   Members of Council Present             
Kiki Miller   )  
Steve Adams   ) 
Dan Gookin    )   
Amy Evans   ) 
Loren Ron Edinger  )  Member of Council Absent 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Widmyer. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The pledge of allegiance was led by Councilmember Adams. 
 
INVOCATION:    Pastor Dave Hoit, Prairie Avenue Christian Center, provided the invocation.   
 
AMENDMENT TO AGENDA:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to amend the order 
of the agenda to move the Public Hearings before Other Business items.  Motion Carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
 
Mike Nadeau, Coeur d’Alene, expressed concern regarding the bike trail along Mullan Avenue 
and 20th Street.  He is concerned that the bike path is packed with people walking dogs, bikes, 
and now triathletes moving as fast as cars and that there will be a pedestrian vehicle accident.  
He recommends that there be a bike path on both sides of the street and that the City remove on-
street parking.   Councilmember Adams stated that the Parking Commission has discussed the 
idea of creating Young Avenue as a pedestrian only boulevard.  Mr. Nadeau stated that he is 
more worried about the triathletes continuing to use Mullan Avenue.  Councilman Gookin stated 
that there are other streets in the city with cars moving too fast and Mullan is one of several that 
are concerning.  He stated that he has talked to the City Engineer and the Police Department, and 
law enforcement will enhance enforcement on Mullan Avenue.   
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to approve the consent 
calendar as amended.  

1. Approval of Council Minutes for June 3, 2014.  
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted. 



2 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                      Page               

3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for June 23, 2014, 
2014 at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively. 

4. Approval of Beer and Wine License for the Country Club dba The Rocker Room; 216 E. 
Coeur d’Alene Avenue, Jack Tawney, Mike Lyou, and Dave Pulis (name change).   

5. Approval of Beer and Wine License for the Bulwark Barber, LLC; 204 N. 3rd Street, 
Tanden Launder (new).   

6. Approval of Beer and Wine License for the Daft Badger Brewing, LLC; 1710 N. 2nd 
Street, Darrell Dlouhy (new).   

7. Approval of Cemetery lot transfer from Joseph and Frances Chapman to William 
Chapman; Lots 274, 284, and 294 Block A, Riverview, Forest Cemetery.  

8. Approval of S-1-12.m, Cottage Grove Second Addition – final plat approval. 
9. Approval of SS-4-14, Fruit Lands Second Addition – final plat approval. 
10. Approval of Resolution No. 14-023 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR 

D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW 
MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH COEUR 
D'ALENE NORTH HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION FOR CITY OWNED 
PROPERTY; ISLES OF TROY, LOT 1, BLOCK 2, URD LAKE DISTRICT 1997, 
SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 50N, RANGE 4 WEST; APPROVING A LEASE OF CITY-
OWNED PARKING LOTS TO THE COEUR D'ALENE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
ON THE 4TH OF JULY; APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH FATBEAM, 
LLC FOR FIBER TO 1424 E. SHERMAN AVENUE; AND APPROVING A LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH EASTLAKE, LLC FOR RENTAL OF 1424 E. SHERMAN 
AVENUE FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT SUB-STATION. 

 
ROLL CALL:  Gookin Aye, Miller Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; McEvers Aye. Motion 
Carried. 

COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
Councilmember Adams stated that he will be out of town on Monday, so there will be no 
General Services Committee on that day, June 23, 2014.  Any agenda items will be forwarded to 
the Public Works Committee which meets at 4:00 p.m. on that same day.  He asked if the names 
of the people serving on the committee for the police chief recruitment could be made public.  
Mayor Widmyer stated that the list has been made public several times and is public information.  
He will ask that another press release with that information be sent out.   
 
Councilmember Evans stated that the Arts Commission is looking for nominations for the 
Mayor’s Art Awards, and encouraged citizens to fill out the nomination forms on the city 
website at www.cdaid.org.   
 
Councilmember Gookin stated that city staff had a 3-on-3 basketball tournament fundraiser last 
night and thanked everyone for their participation.   
 
Councilmember McEvers stated that Robert Singletary will be continuing his History of Coeur 
d’Alene series with a discussion of the 1950s on Thursday, June 25 from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m. in the 
Library Community Room.  Additionally, he stated that he wanted to withdraw the motion he 

http://www.cdaid.org/


3 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                            Page                        

made at the last City Council meeting regarding the hiring of the City Administrator.  He 
believes it is in the best interest of the City to let the system of open recruitment move forward, 
although he still supports Mr. Tymesen.  Councilmember Miller stated that she is good with the 
removal of the item, as she seconded the motion to allow a fellow councilmember to have their 
time to discuss the issue.    
 
MAYOR ANNOUNCEMENT:  The Mayor asked for a motion to approve the appointment of 
Tina Johnson to the Natural Open Space Committee.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Evans to approve the appointment of Tina 
Johnson to the Natural Open Space Committee. Motion carried. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:    Interim City Administrator Troy Tymesen announced that 
the Coeur d’Alene 2030 Visioning Project is celebrating the community’s vision for our city’s 
future on Wednesday, June 25th, from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the Live After Five Event on the 
corner of 6th & Sherman Avenue.  He stated that the City is in the final stage, as there are a 
couple of modifications to the recirculating water system and some landscaping to be completed.  
Additionally, he reminded motorists who park at the new parking structure adjacent to McEuen 
Park that they must obtain a ticket from the automatic pay stations. The first two hours of 
parking is free; however, motorists must still display a ticket in their vehicle indicating what time 
they arrived.  Three pay stations are located at the Third Street Entrance, and at the bottom of the 
stairs on 5th Street and 6th Street.  He congratulated Assistant Water Superintendent Terry 
Pickel for passing his Class IV Water Distribution test last week.  There are only 69 other Class 
IV water operators in Idaho.  Colorful and creative artwork continues to pop up all over town as 
part of Coeur d’Alene’s Utility Box Beautification project.  The city’s Arts Commission recently 
selected 18 new pieces of artwork created by 13 local artists that will soon be on display on 
utility boxes across the city – from Appleway, to Fourth Street, to Riverstone.  Since the city 
implemented the beautification project three years ago, 35 utility boxes have been wrapped with 
the vinyl artwork crated by artists, graphic designers, photographers, illustrators, and other 
individuals eager to share their artistic imagination.  That number will increase to 53 once the 
latest art selections are installed later this summer.  Local artists who have their talent on display 
include students from elementary, middle and high schools who have designed their own 
creations for 12 utility boxes at six schools.   Mayor Steve Widmyer read to a group of Sorensen 
Magnet School students last Thursday before giving each student a book.  The only requirement 
is the students are asked to read it to someone.  The NIC wrestling team has distributed more 
than 13,000 books to elementary students through the Shirley Parker Reading program, which 
was established in 2002 in partnership with Parker Toyota.  The program was named in honor of 
Doug Parker’s late wife, Shirley, who was a big supporter of both reading and wrestling.  The 
program puts at least one book in the hands of every first-grader in the Coeur d’Alene School 
District each year.  Long-time, faithful Police Department Volunteer Coordinator Wally 
Connally passed away this weekend, at the age of 92.  He started volunteering at the Police 
Department in 1995 and continued in his role until he reached the age of 90.  Wally had an 
incredibly interesting life filled with service to his Country and community, and was named 
Hayden Veteran of the Year in 2009.  Municipal Milestones, a monthly e-newsletter covering 
city news and events, employees, departments at work, and other timely city information and 
issues, made its debut on Tuesday, June 10th.  The newsletter will be emailed on the second 



4 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                      Page               

Tuesday of each month.  To view the newsletter and instructions for receiving a monthly email 
version, visit the city’s website www.cdaid.org, and click on the icon on the lower left corner.  
Taking advantage of the seasonably warm temperatures street crews were able to begin spring 
striping and crosswalk painting.  With 120 miles of centerline striping, and 1800 
crosswalks/arrows revisited annually, crews will spend the majority of the summer 
accomplishing this task.  Coeur d’Alene’s Wastewater Utility Department received high honors 
from the Coeur d’Alene Chamber of Commerce’s Education Committee for its outstanding 
commitment to education.  Wastewater Superintendent Sid Fredrickson accepted the 
committee’s A+ award for going above and beyond the call of duty in educating local youth 
about the city’s cutting-edge wastewater treatment operation.  Wastewater employees routinely 
provide tours of the plant where they explain the chemistry and technology involved in the 
treatment process.  Specialized Needs Recreation is seeking volunteers ages 13 and up to help 
with Camp Allstars, a summer day camp for children with special needs.  The camp runs 
Monday through Friday 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. for 11 weeks, June 9 through August 22.  
Volunteers choose their own schedule and it is not mandatory to volunteer every day.  For more 
information, call Angie Goucher at 755-6781.  Coeur d’Alene Mayor Steve Widmyer has 
established a direct telephone line for callers to leave a comment, idea or concern.  To leave a 
message 24/7 with the mayor, call 769-2220, extension 503, or visit the city’s website and click 
on the icon shown on the screen.   
 

Resolution No. 14-024 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
ADOPTING THE CDA 2030 COMMUNITY VISION STATEMENT, STRATEGIES AND 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN. 
 
Dr. Buck stated that the CDA 2030 Vision project management team is requesting the City 
Council adopt the CDA 2030 Community Vision, Strategies and proposed Implementation Plan. 
This was intended to be a one year project with the past few months being concentrated effort of 
data review and consolidation of deliverables into a format that would be useful to the 
community.   Two deliverables were the vision booklet, including a vision in each of the 6 focus 
areas, and an implementation plan.  At the June 25th celebration the vision booklets will be 
available.  He stated that the celebration will be a lot of fun and includes some giveaways and 
free cupcakes in celebration of the community plan.    The deliverable of the implementation 
plan includes several items that participants have already been taking action upon, such as the 
“Let’s Move” program with Panhandle Health District.  Another example of an item already 
moving forward is the Four-Corner project and connecting bike trails.  The group is working 
with partners to take on specific projects.  He thanked Nicole Kahler and Chett Gaede for their 
tireless work.  Within the implementation plan there are 78 action items identified for the City to 
lead, so he is asking the City to formally adopt the plan for the community benefit of moving 
forward.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Miller to approve Resolution No. 14-024 adopting 
the CDA Vision 2030 Community Vision Statement, Strategies, and Implementation Plan.  
 



5 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                            Page                        

DISCUSSION:  Mayor Widmyer thanked Dr. Buck, Steve Wilson, Nicole, and Chuck for their 
time and effort put into this strategic plan.  Councilmember McEvers stated that he has watched Dr. 
Buck’s enthusiasm over the past year and stated that he is very thorough in his work.  He thanked 
Dr. Buck and his team for their dedication.  Dr. Buck stated that it has been a fun and energizing 
project.    Councilmember Adams stated that he has opposed this project from the beginning as he 
does not think it falls within the role of government.  Additionally, there is an ideology behind these 
vision projects; specifically, Agenda 21 and sustainable development requirements.  
Councilmember Adams believes that these type of projects lead to property right restrictions.  He 
encouraged the City Council and the community to conduct research into this ideology.   Mayor 
Widmyer asked Councilmember Adams what would be a property right restriction.  Councilmember 
Adams stated that examples would be sustainability and green building requirements, as well as 
when people are forced into things such as sprinkler systems.  Additionally, he mentioned forced 
community involvement such as recycling.  Mayor Widmyer clarified that the 2030 vision would 
not force such issues, as the City Council would create and vote on such restrictions.  
Councilmember Adams stated that he believes this is the initiation of such restrictions.  
Councilmember Gookin stated that special appreciation should be given to Mr. Gridley, as he 
championed this project.  Mr. Gridley stated that the volunteers, those that filled out the survey and 
the public that brought forward their suggestions should also be thanked.  Councilmember Miller 
clarified that the adoption of the resolution does not guarantee any funding or commitment for 
future funding.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; Evans Aye; Adams No; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Authorization to apply for a COPS Grant for three Police Officers. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Interim Police Chief Ron Clark stated that the City has grown and attracts 
thousands of visitors every day.  Additionally, calls for service and reported crimes have 
increased; therefore, he is requesting the ability to seek a grant for three years of funding for 
three police officers, with the fourth year being covered 100% by the City.  He clarified that the 
grant must be applied to a specific program; and the city’s program would be community 
policing.  The first three years of financing would be $375,000 of federal funding with the City’s 
match of $56,585 the first year, $80,425 the second and $190,932 for the third year.  The fourth 
year the City would be responsible for the full amount of those three officers which will be 
approximately $275,000. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to authorize staff to apply for a COPS 
grant for three Police Officers.     
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember McEvers clarified the city has applied for these grants before.  
Chief Clark stated that the Police Department applied last year, but they were not successful.  
Councilmember McEvers asked if the funding would need to go toward newly hired police. Chief 
Clark confirmed that they must be new hires.   Councilmember Adams expressed concern about 
obligating the city to funds that we may not be able to sustain in the fourth year of the grant.    Mr. 
Tymesen stated that there are at least three officer positions expected to be open through attrition, 
such as retirement, over the next four years.  He also stated that these grants have been used in the 
past and he is very comfortable with this grant program.  Councilmember Gookin stated that his 



6 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                      Page               

priority is to increase the number of Police Officers, and asked for clarification that this program 
would increase the number of Police Officers.  Mr. Tymesen stated that it is an increase in officers; 
and that he was trying to clarify that the city could sustain the funding and that each year the City 
Council has the opportunity to determine if they want to increase staff but it would not be a 
financial burden at this point in time.  Mayor Widmyer stated that within the discussion of attrition 
or retirement, there could be some restructuring at another level within the department.   
 
Motion carried with Adams voting No. 
 

Council Bill 14-1011 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING SECTION 15.06.050 TO REQUIRE 
DEVELOPERS OF LARGE BUILDINGS TO EQUIP FIREFIGHTER EQUIPMENT ROOMS 
WITH FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT FOR USE IN EMERGENCIES; PROVIDING REPEAL 
OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING THE 
PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Adams to pass the first reading of Council Bill 
No. 14-1011. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin stated that he was concerned about the equipment 
rooms being empty and that helping the fire crews out is a good thing.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye; Adams Aye; McEvers Aye; Miller Aye, Gookin Aye.  Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Evans to suspend the rules and to adopt Council 
Bill No. 14-1011 by its having had one reading by title only. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye; Adams Aye; McEvers Aye; Miller Aye, Gookin Aye.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Community Development Block Grant Plan Year 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance 
and Evaluation Report (CAPER) to be held June 17, 2014. 

 
STAFF REPORT: Sherri Wastweet, Grant Administrator with Panhandle Area Council stated 
that the City is required by HUD to submit an annual performance report with a fifteen-day 
public comment period.  The notice of the public comment period and notice of public hearing 
were published on June 2, 2014, and June 10, 2014, with the public comment period ending June 
17, 2014.  No comments have been received.  Ms. Wastweet presented information regarding the 
annual use of entitlement program funds and reiterated that the funds need to be used to benefit 
low to moderate income citizens.  Projects included accessible sidewalks along Harrison Avenue 
and Foster Avenue, final payment of the Homestead property purchase, and emergency minor 
home repairs. 

 



7 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                            Page                        

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to approve the Plan Year 2013 CAPER for 
submittal to HUD.    
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember McEvers asked what happened with the Habitat for Humanity 
home.  Ms. Wastweet explained the Habitat waiting list has larger families than this small two-
bedroom home will house and that they are looking to sell the home with a low-income deed 
restriction.   Councilmember McEvers stated that the Emergency Minor Home Repair Program 
(EMRAP) is very popular and wondered if there is a chance to increase that line item.  Ms. 
Wastweet stated that she would love to put more into the program every year and when there are 
funds left over from other projects, they are moved to EMRAP.   Councilmember Gookin asked 
about the 16.3% administration fund.  Ms. Wastweet stated that it was under the 20% cap that is 
allowable by HUD, which allows those funds to go into programs.  Councilmember Miller stated 
that additional representatives from Panhandle Area Council were present and wanted to thank 
Cynthia Reyburn, Chief Financial Officer, and Jim Hammond, Executive Director for their work.    
 
Motion carried. 
 

Resolution No. 14-025 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
SETTING FEES FOR MILL RIVER LIFT STATION SURCHARGE & BOUNDARY LINE 
ADJUSTMENTS & FIREFIGHTER EQUIPMENT ROOM EQUIPMENT FEE AND 
ADOPTING THE IDAHO FIRE SERVICE ORGANIZATION RATE BOOK. 
 
STAFF REPORT: Troy Tymesen, Finance Director stated that the fees requested tonight are 
new and more than a 5% increase, which required a public hearing.  He explained that the 
boundary line adjustment fee of $500.00 stems from the newly adopted subdivision ordinance.  
Mike Becker, Utility Project Manager, stated that the Mill River lift station surcharge came 
forward to cover the cost associated with increased capacity to the plant.  JUB Engineering 
reviewed the density and made the recommendation to the master plan specifically for the Mill 
River area to include a $450.00 per equivalent residential unit surcharge.   Fire Chief Gabriel 
stated that the two items coming forward are important to the Fire Department.  The firefighter 
equipment room requirement was added to the city code several years ago, during the recession; 
therefore, they avoided adding the equipment purchase at that time.  He believes that this is the 
perfect time to ask for approval for the developers to pay for the equipment to the rooms required 
in high rise buildings.  The Fire Department presented this information to NIBCA and received 
their support.  The second fire related fee is the acceptance of the Idaho Fire Service 
Organization Rate Book which provides a standard for reimbursement rates to insurance 
companies and charge back amounts for mutual aid agreement usage throughout the state.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by to approve the Resolution No. 14-025 approving 
various fee increases within the Engineering, Wastewater, and Fire Departments. 



8 

 
 

 Council Minutes June 17, 2014                      Page               

 
DISCUSSION: Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification of the projected flow, and the 
effect of the capacity at the plant.  Mr. Becker stated that this projection would only affect the 
capacity into the plant.  Councilmember Miller asked if, during the performance analysis, they 
included upgrades at the plant, up keep, and replacement items.  Mr. Becker stated that replacement 
would be paid for by other fees and this would be used to provide the level of service needed as 
long as the parameters of the analysis stay the same.  He clarified that if a higher usage comes 
forward a new analysis would need to be done.  Councilmember Evans asked if the firefighter 
equipment room fee would cover replacement of equipment over the years.  Chief Gabriel stated 
that if the Fire Department breaks the piece of equipment they would replace it.   Councilmember 
Miller asked how often the rooms would be inspected.  Chief Gabriel stated that the rooms would 
be inspected once a month, and that the engine companies could do a review when they are in the 
area.  Councilmember McEvers asked if the rate book applied to Forest Service work.  Chief 
Gabriel stated that it would set the reimbursement rate.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Adams Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Miller Aye; Evans Aye.  Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, that there being no further business 
before the Council, this meeting be adjourned.  Motion Carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  

















Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  
   

RESOLUTION NO. 14-026 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT FOR S-2-03.M.1, LANDINGS @ WATERFORD 12TH ADDITION, FINAL 
PLAT, SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND BOND SECURITY WITH 
MULLIGAN INVESTMENTS, LLC; APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR SS-5-14, 
INTERSTATE ADDITION, FINAL PLAT, SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 
AND SECURITY WITH INTERSTATE CONCRETE AND ASPHALT COMPANY; 
APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE HINDERER CONCESSIONS FOR 
MCEUEN PARK HARBOR HOUSE CONCESSIONS FOR THE 2014 SEASON; 
APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH BUDDY’S BACKHOE SERVICE FOR THE 2014 OPEN 
TRENCH PROJECT; APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH HANDSHAKE 
PRODUCTIONS FOR THE SUMMER CONCERT SERIES IN THE CITY PARK; 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH NORTH IDAHO COLLEGE FOR EMPLOYMENT 
OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS FOR THE DISTRICTS FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015; 
AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH COEUR D'ALENE SCHOOL DISTRICT #271 
FOR EMPLOYMENT OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS THE DISTRICTS FISCAL 
YEAR 2014-2015. 
         

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A through G” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

 
A) Approving an Agreement for S-2-03.m.1, Landings @ Waterford 12th Addition, 

Final Plat, Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Bond Security with 
Mulligan Investments, LLC; 
 

B) Approving an Agreement for SS-5-14, Interstate Addition, Final Plat, Subdivision 
improvement Agreement and Security with Interstate Concrete and Asphalt 
Company;  

 
C) Approving a Lease Agreement with the Hinderer Concessions for McEuen Park 

Harbor House Concessions for the 2014 season; 
 
D) Approving a Contract with Buddy’s Backhoe Service for the 2014 Open Trench 

Project; 
 
E) Approving an Agreement with Handshake Productions for the summer concert 

series in the City Park; 
 
F) Approving an Agreement with North Idaho College for employment of School 

Resource Officers for the Districts Fiscal Year 2014-2015; 
 



Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  
   

G) Approving an Agreement with Coeur d'Alene School District #271 for 
employment of School Resource Officers the Districts Fiscal Year 2014-2015;   

 
AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 

citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through G" and incorporated herein by reference with the 
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify 
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other 
actions remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 1st day of July, 2014.   
 
                                        
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
  
 
 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 













JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
026

JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"



JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
026

JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text



JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Resolution No. 14-026										Exhibit "A"



JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Resolution No. 14-026										Exhibit "A"











JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
026

JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Resolution No. 14-026

JKNIGHT
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\July 1, 2014\SR - Habor house concession.doc 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Date:  June 23, 2014 
From:  Bill Greenwood, Parks Director 
SUBJECT:  MCEUEN PARK HARBOR HOUSE CONCESSION LEASE AGREEMENT 
     
 
 
DECISION POINT: 
Does the Public Works Committee want to recommend to the City Council the approval 
of the Rotary Harbor House Concession lease to Hinderer Concessions?  
 
 
HISTORY: 
This is our first opportunity to lease this facility .The Harbor House Concession was 
completed this June and is ready to provide this service to park patrons.  
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
Hinderer Concessions will pay $4,500 for this season beginning July 3, 2014 and ending 
September 30, 2014. These funds will be placed in the Park Capital Improvement Fund  
 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
We are offering a single season lease at this site for 2014. Hinderer Concessions will 
operate the concession area 7 days a week at the Rotary Harbor House. Staff will 
prepare a new RFQ early next year for the 2015 season.   
   
 
DECISION POINT / RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that Roy Hinderer (Hinderer Concessions) be granted a lease for the 
2014 season at the Rotary Harbor House. Does the Public Works Committee want to 
forward a recommendation to the City Council to enter into a lease agreement with Roy 
Hinderer for the 2014 season at the Rotary Harbor House Concession? 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ C ”  

CONTRACT 
 
 
 THIS CONTRACT, made and entered this 2nd day of July, 2014, between the City Of 

COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and Hinderer Concessions, a food 

concessions company duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 

Idaho (“Vendor”), with its principal place of business at 7468 N Courcelles Parkway Coeur 

d’Alene, Idaho 83815. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 THAT, WHEREAS, Vendor has been awarded a permit for a food concession at McEuen 

Park Harbor House, according to plans, conditions, and specifications attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A”, which by this reference is incorporated herein. 

  

 IT IS AGREED that for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements to be made 

and performed by the City, Vendor agrees that it will operate and maintain the food concession 

according to the plans and specifications contained in Exhibit “A”. 

 

 Vendor agrees that it will indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless from all claims 

for injury to person or property resulting from the Vendor’s actions or omissions in performance 

of this contract.   

 

 Vendor agrees to maintain Worker’s Compensation coverage on all employees during the 

term of this contract as required by Idaho Code Sections 72-101 through 72-806.  Should Vendor 

fail to maintain such insurance during the entire term hereof, Vendor will indemnify the City 

against any loss resulting to the City from such failure, either by way of compensation or 

additional premium liability.   Vendor will furnish to the City, prior to the granting of a permit, 

such evidence as the City may require demonstrating Worker’s Compensation coverage. 

  

 Vendor, in consideration for the permit to operate and maintain the food concession at 

McEuen Park Harbor House, will pay to the City the sum of $4,500.00, on or before July 7th, 

2014.  Payment shall be made to the City’s Finance Department. 

 



Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ C ”  

 Vendor agrees that it will not assign its rights or obligations under this contract without 

the written consent of the City. 

 

 The City, in consideration of the Vendor agreeing to operate and maintain the food 

concession according to the plans and specifications contained in Exhibit “A” will issue the 

permit to the Vendor to operate the McEuen Park Harbor House concession stand for the period 

of July 4, 2014 to September 30, 2014.  

  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Coeur d’Alene have 

executed this contract on behalf of said City, the City Clerk has affixed the seal of said City 

hereto, and the Party of the Second Part has caused the same to be signed by its President, and 

its seal to be affixed hereto, the day and year first above written. 

 

City of Coeur d’ Alene      Hinderer Concessions 
Kootenai County, Idaho                           
 
 
 
By:   By:                            
         Steve Widmyer, Mayor                        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 

 
 

*** Notary Page  follows on next page ***  



Resolution No. 14-026 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ C ”  

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this 1st day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of 
the City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me 
that said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
          
   Notary Public for Idaho 
   Residing at       
   My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ______ day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
__________________________, known to me to be the ________________, of Hinderer 
Concessions, and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said 
__________________, and acknowledged to me that such ____________________ executed 
the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
          
   Notary Public for Idaho 
   Residing at       
   My Commission expires:     
 
 

 

 

 



CITγ OF COEUR D'ALENE
PARKS DEPARTMEN丁 CITγ HALL,710 E Muttan Avenue

Coeur d'Alene, ldaho 83814
208‐ 769‐ 2252  FAX:208‐ 769‐ 2383

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

FOR
THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE

MCEUEN PARK
F00D CONCESSIONS

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
FOR

THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
MCEUEN PARK F00D CONCESSIONS

¶hc City of Coeur d'Alene is secl血 g prOposals ttom qualifled prOfessiOnals fOr a sOle source

food conccssion prOvider for McEuen Park.

The cOmpletc Request fOr PropOsals is availablc by Obtaining a copy rat the C、ゎmer S∝vice
O饉cc at City Hall,710 Mullan Ave,Cocur d'Alene,Idallo 83814,and(208)769‐ 2229.For
mhcr ml"肛 nadOn,Or questions regarding the proposal,pleasc contact Bill Green、 v00d,Parks
Director at(208)769-2251

A PreSubmittal mecting、宙1l be held on June 5ul,2014 at 2:00p.m.in■ К01d Council
Chambers at Coeur d'Alene Ciサ Hall,710E.Mullan Avcnue,Coeur d'Alcne,Idaho

Proposals恥11l be acceptcd up to and unt11 4:00 p m onJune13h,2014,in thc Ci"clerk's

Ottce,City ofCocur d'Alene,City Hall,710 E Mullan Avenuc,COeur d'Alene,Idaho 83814

The Ciけ ,in aCCOrdance、 、itll Title VI ofthe civ‖ Rights Act of 1964,78 stat 252,42U.S.C.
2000d t0 2000d-4 and Tittle 49,Code ofFederal Rcgulations,Dcpartment ofTransportatiOL

Subtitle A,0伍cc Ofthe Secretary P試 21,NondiscHminatiOn in Federally‐assisted progrЯ ms Of
the Dcparment OfTransportatiOn issucd pursuant to such Act hcreby noifles all bidders thatit

Will赫 aivcly ensure thatin my cOnmct elltcrcd into pursllntltto thc advertisement

disadvantaged bushcss entettscs as demed前 49 CFR Part23 win be arordcd負1l oppo血亜サ
to subl」t bids in responsc to this inviね ■On and■減1l mt be disc五mmated aganst on the gromds
ofrace,cOloL national oHgin,or scx in consideratiOn for an award

Dated this 28th day ofMay 2014.

ネ*****Ⅲ ⅢⅢ*十 **

Publish: May 30,2014;」 une 6,2014

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
City of COeur d'Alene

The city of coeur d'Alene, incorporated in 1gg7 as a township in the Territory of ldaho, today
is a wortd-class resort city. Visitors from att over the wortd enjoy its beautifit green forests,
sparkting lakes, its nationatty recognized golf course, mountai; sports, and othe'r outdoor
recreation. Coeur d'Alene covers 14.90 square mites and is the sixth targest city in ldaho with
a poputation of approximatety 44,000.

The City of Coeur d'Atene is currentty seeking to estabtish a concessions service at McEuen
Park.

PROJECT SCOPE:

1. Operate concessions stand in the Harbor House at McEuen park.

Z. The party to whom the permit is awarded witt be required to execute the permit within
ten (10) calendar days from the date when 'Notice of Award, is detivered. The ,Notice
of Award' shatl be accompanied by the necessary permit agreement. ln case of faiture
of the vendor to execute the permit, the city may, at its option, consider the vendor in
default, in which case the city may award the location to ihe next appropriate vendor if
avaitabte, or the City may take whatever other action is appropriate.

3. The city shatt sign an executed copy of the signed permit at the time atl documents are
submitted and fu[[ payment has been made.

4. Fees are to be paid to the parks Department prior to taking possession of the site for
that calendar year. Exampte: Fee payment is due no tater thin Aprit 15rh, 2014,

5. Concession area must be kept ctean throughout the season.

6. Permit agreement and avaitabitity of site witt begin May 1't and end september 30th.

7. The vendor can operate seven (7) days a week during the season of operation.
weekends (Saturday and sunday) and holidays are required to be futty operational for
food service. lnclement weather coutd preclude operating on a bad weather day; the
Parks Department witl need to be notified if vendor cannot set up due to weat#i.

8. Vendor employees are required to be courteous and informed about the community so
as to assist with questions from tourists and other park users, i.e., be famil.iar with the
immediate area inctuding the locations of other city parks and trails and destination
locations, i.e., North ldaho Cottege, Coeur d,Alene Resort, City park, Chamber of
Commerce, and the Visitors Center.

9. Emptoyees must be appropriatety dressed in either an approved t-shirt or polo-shirt with
identifying [ogo, and approved shorts'if shorts are preferred instead of pants. Approval
must be received from the Parks Director. lt wilt not be permissibte to operate iood
concessions without a shirt or in bikini type swimwear. swimwear does not constitute
proper attire.

10. The concession must be staffed by one emptoyee at at[ times. proof of worker,s
Compensation coverage woutd be necessary if required by State taw.

McEuen Park Food Concessions

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposal . City of Coeur d'Atene

11. A current health permit is required for the food concession. The permit must be ptaced
in a conspicuous ptace. Hea[th permits must be submitted within two (2) weeks of
officiaI notification of site award. Exampte: Heatth permit is required to be turned in to the
City Cterk by Aprit 15th, 2014.

12. Faiture to submit your health permit within the specified period of time can resutt in the
City denying your permit or the City can take other action.

13. The Panhandte Heatth District woutd [ike to have two (2) weeks to review the permit
request. Submit your app[ication to Panhandte Heatth District earty.

14. Vehicles are prohibited from parking longer than it takes to load or untoad. lf you need
to be in the park for an extended period of time, contact the Parks Department. Any
vehicte used to bring a traiter to the site must park the vehic[e in a designated parking
space. Vehicles wi[[ not be permitted to be on sidewalks, beaches or park properties
other than the parking [ot.

15. Vendors are not al[owed to dispose of their refuse in City maintained trash receptacles.
Refuse must be removed from site and disposed of at owner's expense.

16. A Pre-Submittat meeting witt be hetd on Thursday June 5th, 2014 at ZiOO p.m. in the Otd
Council Chambers at Coeur d'Atene City Halt, 710 E. Muttan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene,
ldaho. This witl inctude an on-site walk through of the buitding.

17. Att proposats shatl be submitted to the City Cterk's office at 710 East Mu[[an Avenue,
Coeur d'Atene, no later than Friday June 13th, 2014 at 4:00 p.m. Proposal shatl be
seated and clearly marked, i.e. "Proposal - McEuen Park Food Concession - 2014".

18. Any violation of the contract, City regutations, or ordinances, or cotlusion wiU result in
the revoking of the permit, fee forfeiture, and the concessionaire or his agent witl not
be attowed to re-bid for a period of three (3) years.

19. Concession amenities must be removed from site by sunset of each day, un[ess a special
event runs tater, amenities must be removed by end of event. Other amenities wi[[ not
be atlowed to remain on site overnight.

20. The City hosts other events during the year and this can preclude operation of the
concession during the event.

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat . City of Coeur d'Atene

PROPOSAL CONTENTS AND EVALUATION CRITERIA:

Proposals shoutd inctude information in each of the fottowing categories. Proposats witl be
evatuated on the basis of each of the five identified criteria, 'in accordance with the point
values identified below:

1. Capability to Manage Food Concession. Describe your area of expertise, tength of time
in business, number of emptoyees, and other information that woutd hetp to
characterize your commitment to provide necessary resources to manage the food
concession service. Provide the address of the main office and the address of the office
that witt actuauy manage the food concession. Provide the same detaited description of
any and atl concessions you may partner with on this project. (20 points)

7. Relevant Project Experience. Briefty describe other concessions demonstrating
retevant experience. List att pubtic sector ctients for whom you have performed similar
work in the past five years. For each project mentioned, inctude the name, address and
phone number of a person who can be contacted regarding your performance on the
project. When submitting projects for which your firm worked in an auxitiary capacity
or in a joint venture or partnership, inc[ude the name of the lead partner. (20 points)

3. Qualifications of Concessionaire. Provide a professional resume for the key peopte
proposed to be assigned to the concession (inctuding any important sub-consuttants),
and describe relevant retated experience. Describe key personnet's proposed roles and
responsibitities with the food concession. Submittals must identify a concession
manager who woutd be responsibte for day-to-day management of tasks and would be
the primary point of contact for the food concessionaire. (20 points)

4. Project Approach and Schedule. Describe the tasks that must be accomplished to
provide food service. Provide a narrative description of how you propose to execute the
tasks. Discuss any unique aspects of the project such as alternative approaches the City
might wish to consider or speciaI considerations related to food concession
requirements. Provide a schedute of daity operations including proposed arrival and
departure times. The schedute should reftect reatistic durations. Provide the number
of hours on a typical day where the concession witl be staffed by employees and/or the
owner/operator. Provide a narrative on the number of staff that witl work at the
concession and the type of training they witl receive. Provide proposed menu, detaiting
pre-packaged items availabte as wetl as prepared foods. (20 points)

5. Fee Proposal. Provide a fee proposat that inctudes the length of the season and a
detailed scope of services. (20 points)

References, brochures, or other material that may be hetpfut in evatuating your proposal may
be inctuded in an appendix of the proposat. Proposals wi[[ be ranked on the basis of the
above-tisted factors, and the City may choose to interview several of the top ranked
proposers. However, at its discretion, the City may dispense with interviews and setect a
concessionaire to perform the work.

PROCESS:

The City of Coeur d'Atene's aforementioned process wi[[ serve as the setection committee to
assist with evaluations and make recommendations to the Parks and Recreation Commission

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposal . City of Coeur d'Atene

for their review. The Parks and Recreation Commission witt forward a recommendation to the
Mayor and City Council who witl then make the finat approvat. The City witt seek to negotiate
a contract, a detaited scope of work, fee, schedule, etc., with the preferred concessionaire.
lf unabte to reach an agreement, the City wit[ terminate negotiations and commence
negotiations with the second-ranked concessionaire and so forth.

The City expects to evaluate proposats and provide written notification of the short-tisted
concessionaires within 30 days of receipt of proposats. lf interviews are held, they witt be
scheduted within two weeks of short-tist notification.

Questions and responses may be directed to Bit[ Greenwood, Parks Director at208-769-2251.
Six (6) copies of the proposat must be received by Friday June 13th, 7014 at 4:OO p.m., at the
City Cterk's Office, 710 East Mu[tan Avenue, Coeur d'Atene, ldaho 83814. Ptease state
"Proposal - McEuen Park Food Concession - 2014" on the outside of the response package.
Proposals received after the deadtine wi[[ not be considered.

TERMS:

The City reseryes the right to reject any and a[[ proposats deemed to not be in the interest of
the City. The City further reserves the right to negotiate terms and conditions, scope, and
fees on proposats received. The successful concessionaire witl be required to compty with
requirements such as insurance and bonding, heatth regutations, grantee's affirmative action
poticies, etc. The agreement witl be a lump sum.

This soticitation is being offered in accordance with the ldaho Statues governing procurement
of professional services. Accordingty, the City of Coeur d'Alene reserves the right to
negotiate an agreement based on fair and reasonabte compensation for the scope of work and
services proposed as wett as the right to reject any and atl responses deemed unquatified,
unsatisfactory, or inappropriate.

Any and aU materia[ generated as a resu[t of the Coeur d'Atene Parks Concession Request wi[[
be owned in its entirety by the City of Coeur d'Alene. Material and information produced as a
result of the Concession Request for Proposal, shatl not be distributed without prior written
approvat of the Coeur d'Alene Parks Department.

4Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat . City of Coeur d,Atene

SAMPLE HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

in consideration for food
concession rental permit at McEuen park, hereby agrees to save and hotd the city of coeur d,
Atene harmtess from atl claims for property damage, bodity, or personal injury, death, or
other loss or damages resutting from the actions or omissions of

his agents, employees, or assigns, in the performance of this contract, or in
the operation, maintenance, or use of the food concession on city property in coeur d,Atene,
ldaho.

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat City of Coeur d'Atene

SAMPLE

STATE OF IDAHO )

) s.

County of Kootenai )

COAAES NOW
authorized agent for

who being duty sworn, deposes and say:

THAT he/she is the authorized agent of

concession company doing business as

are required bY ldaho [aw.

suBScRIBED AND swoRN to before me this -- day of

Notary Pubtic for ldaho
Residing in Coeur d'Atene

a food

does not have anY Persons in its

emptoy requiring Worker's Compensation under the taws of ldaho' or that your affiant and

his/herprincipatwittobtainandmaintainWorker,sCompensationcoverageontheiremployees

2014.

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat . City of Coeur d'Atene

SAMPLE NON¨ COLLUSION AFF!DAV:T

STATE OF:DAHO  )

)S.

County of Kootenai)

being first duty sworn, on oath says:

That the proposa[ submitted is genuine and not a sham or cottusive, or made in the

interest or on behalf of any person not herein named; and affiant further says that the
said proposal has not directty or indirectty induced or soticited any other proposa[ on

the above work or supplies to put in a predetermined amount, nor has affiant directty
or indirectty induced or soticited any other person, corporation, business, etc., to
refrain from proposing; and that said vendor has not in any manner sought by cotlusion

to secure him or herself an advantage over any other vendor.

Contractor

SUBSCR!BED AND SWORN to before me this         day of 2014.

Notary Pubtic for ldaho
Residing in Coeur d'Atene

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat . City of Coeur d,Atene

SAMPLE CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered this _ day of 2014,

between the City OF COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, ldaho, a municipal corporation duty

organized and existing under and by virtue of the taws of the State of ldaho, pARry OF THE

FIRST PART, and duty

organized and existing under and by virtue of the taws of the State of with its

principal place of business at _, PARTY OF THE SECOND PART,

WITNESSETH:

THAT, WHEREAS, the said Party of the Second part has been awarded a permit for a food

concession at McEuen Park Harbor House, according to plans, conditions, and specifications on

fite in the office of the city cterk of said city, which ptans, conditions, and specifications are

incorporated herein by reference.

lT lS AGREED that for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements to be made

and performed by the city of coeur D' Atene, as hereinafter set forth, the party of the second

Part shatl operate and maintain the food concession according to said ptans and specifications

and under the penalties expressed therein. At[ said ptans and specifications are hereby dectared

and accepted as parts of this contract.

The Party of the Second Part shall save the City harmtess from atl ctaims for injury to
person or property resutting from the Party of the second part's actions or omissions in

performance of this contract, and to that end sha[[ execute a hotd harmtess agreement attached

hereto as Exhibit "A" and by this reference incorporate herein.

The Party of the Second Part agrees to maintain Worker's Compensation coverage on at[

employees during the term of this contract as required by ldaho Code Sections 72-101 through

72-806. Shoutd the Party of the Second Part fail to maintain such insurance during the entire
term hereof, the Party of the Second Part shatt indemnify the Party of the First Part against any

toss resutting to the Party of the First Part from such failure, either by way of compensation or

additionaI premium tiabitity.

The Party of the Second Part shat[ furnish to the party of the First part, prior to the
granting of a permit, such evidence as the Party of the First Part may require affirming Worker,s

Compensation coverage.

The Party of the Second Part shatl in consideration for the permit to operate and

maintain the food concession at McEuen Park Harbor House pay the sum of g_, on or
before April 15th. Payment shatl be made to the City Treasurer.

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Request for Proposat . City of Coeur d'Alene

The Party of the First Part shatl the food concession permit to the party of the Second

Part for the season of Mav 1 to September 30 for the aforestated location of
McEuen Park Harbor House.

THIS CONTMCT, with att of its forms, plans, specifications, conditions, stiputations, and

ordinances, shatt be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Cterk of the City of Coeur d,Atene have

executed this contract on behatf of said city, the city Cterk has affixed the seat of said city
hereto, and the Party of the second Part has caused the same to be signed by its president, and

its sea[ to be affixed hereto, the day and year first above written.

PARTY OF THE FIRST PART:

City of Coeur d'Atene

Kootenai County,ldaho

PARTY OF THE SECOND PART:

AAayOr

ATTEST:

City Cterk

(SEAL)

By:By:

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



4.

Attachment I

This Attachment is to be inserted in every contract subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and, associated
Regulations.

During the performance ofthis contract, the contractor/consultant, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows:

l. Compliance with Regulations
The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted
progftlms of United States Department of Transportation (USDOT), Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are
herein incorporated by reference and made a part ofthis contract.

2. Non-discrimination
The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the
grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of sub-contractors, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly or
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

3. Solicitations for Sub-contracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the contractor for work to be
performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential
sub-contractor or supplier shall be notihed by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this
contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national
origin.
Information and Reports
The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued
pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and
its facilities as may be determined by the contracting agency or the appropriate federal agency to be
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information
required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to fumish this
information, the contractor shall so certit/ to ITD or the USDOT as appropriate, and shall set forth what
efforts it has made to obtain the information.
Sanctions for Non-compliance
In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the
contracting agency shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be
appropriate, including, but not limited to:

o Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or;
o Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions
The contractor shall include the provisions ofparagraphs (1) through (5) in every sub-contract, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued
pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any sub-contractor or procurement
as the contracting agency or USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for non-compliance.

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with
a sub-contractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request ITD enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the state and, in addition, the contractor may request the USDOT enter
into such litigation to protect the interests ofthe United States.

5。

Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 Exhibit "C-A"



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

DATE: June 17, 2014 
FROM: Mike Becker, Wastewater Utility Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Bid Results for the 2014 Open Trench Project. 
============================================================= 
 
DECISION POINT:   
The City Council may wish to accept and award the City of Coeur d’Alene 
Wastewater Utility’s 2014 Open Trench Project contract to the apparent low 
bidder. 
 
 
HISTORY:   
In accordance with Idaho Code, this project was advertised in the Coeur d’Alene 
Press June 3, 2014 and June 10, 2014 soliciting sealed bids for the 2014 Open 
Trench Project that would replace approximately 670 LF of existing sewer piping 
and appurtenances at two (2) separate locations.  Sealed Bids were publically 
opened and read on June 17, 2014 at 2:00 PM.  
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:   
The following is a tabulation of the contractor’s bid results: 
 

• Earthworks Northwest:      $ 143,128.00 
• Buddy’s Backhoe Service:      $ 113,670.00 
• T LaReivere:        $ 135,070.00 
• Big Sky Development:      $ 162,395.00 

 
The Engineer’s (JUB) estimate of probable cost:   $ 157,000.00 
 
The apparent low bid was submitted by Buddy’s Backhoe Service with a total bid 
price of $113,670.00.   
 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:   
The Wastewater Utility planned for this project during the FY 2013/14 budget and 
has the available funds.  Buddy’s has successfully completed numerous open 
trench projects within the City of Coeur d’Alene to the Wastewater Utility’s 
satisfaction and we are confident Buddy’s crew can perform this project’s scope 
of work. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Award the 2014 Open Trench Project contract to Buddy’s Backhoe Service, for 
the total bid price of $113,670.00. 



Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ D ”  

Contract 
 
   THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 1st day of July, 2014, between the CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by 
virtue of the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as “CITY”, and BUDDY’S BACKHOE 
SERVICE, INC. a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
Idaho, with its principal place of business at N. 21002 Rimrock Road, Hayden, ID 83835, hereinafter 
referred to as the CONTRACTOR.  
 
     W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
     THAT, WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has been awarded the contract for 2014 Open Trench Project 
in Coeur d’Alene, according to plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk of the 
CITY, which plans and specifications are entitled: 
 

City of Coeur d’Alene – Wastewater Utility – 2014 Open Trench Project 
 
     IT IS AGREED that for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements to be made and 
performed by the CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, as hereinafter set forth, the CONTRACTOR shall make 
improvements as set forth in the said plans and specifications described above, in said city, furnishing 
all labor and materials therefor according to said plans and specifications and under the penalties 
expressed in the performance bond bearing even date herewith, and which bond with said plans and 
specifications are hereby declared and accepted as parts of this contract. All material shall be of the 
high standard required by the said plans and specifications and approved by the Water Superintendent, 
and all labor performed shall be of first-class workmanship. 
 
     The CONTRACTOR shall employ appropriate means to prevent accidents and defend the CITY from 
all claims for injury to person or property resulting from the CONTRACTOR’s actions or omissions in 
performance of this contract, and to that end shall maintain insurance of the type and in the amount 
specified in the Contract Documents, it being the intention that the minimum limits shall be those 
provided for under Chapter 9, Title 6, Section 24 of the Idaho Code. Certificates of insurance providing 
at least thirty (30) days written notice to the City prior to cancellation of the policy shall be filed in 
the office of the City Clerk. 
 
     The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain Workman's' Compensation coverage on all employees, 
including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this contract as required by Idaho Code 
Sections 72-101 through 72-806. Should the CONTRACTOR fail to maintain such insurance during the 
entire term hereof, the CITY shall indemnify the CONTRACTOR against any loss resulting to the CITY 
from such failure, either by way of compensation or additional premium liability. The CONTRACTOR 
shall furnish to the CITY, prior to commencement of the work, such evidence as the CITY may require 
guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the Employment Security Law including, at the 
option of the CITY, a surety bond in an amount sufficient to make such payments. 
 
     The CONTRACTOR shall furnish the CITY certificates of the insurance coverage's required herein, 
which certificates must be approved by the City Attorney.  
 
     The CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, the CITY, shall pay to the CONTRACTOR for the work, services and 
materials herein provided to be done and furnished by it, a sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED THIRTEEN 
THOUSAND-SIX HUNDRED SEVENTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($113,670.00), as provided in the Unit Price 
Schedule. Partial payment shall be made on the third Tuesday of each calendar month on a duly 
certified estimate of the work completed in the previous calendar month less five percent (5%). Final 
payment shall be made thirty (30) days after completion of all work and acceptance by the City 
Council, provided that the contractor has obtained from the Idaho State Tax Commission and submitted 
to the City a release of liability for taxes (Form 10-248-79). Payment shall be made by the City 
Treasurer. 



Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ D ”  

 
 

 
 The Work shall be substantially complete within forty-five (45) calendar days after the date when 
the Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 2.03 of the General Conditions, or by 
September 30, 2014, whichever comes first, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance 
with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions within thirty (30) calendar days after the date of 
substantial completion. 
 
        The CITY and the CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence and failure of the 
CONTRACTOR to complete the work within the time allowed shall result in damages being sustained by 
the CITY. Such damages are and will continue to be impractical and extremely difficult to determine. 
Therefore, in the event the CONTRACTOR shall fail to complete the work within the above time limit, 
the CONTACTOR shall pay to the CITY or have withheld from moneys due, liquidated damages at the 
rate of $750.00 per calendar day, which sums shall not be construed as a penalty. 
 
     IT IS AGREED that the CONTRACTOR must employ ninety-five percent (95%) bona fide Idaho 
residents as employees on any job under this contract except where under this contract fifty (50) or 
less persons are employed by the contractor, in which case the CONTRACTOR may employ ten percent 
(10%) nonresidents; provided, however, in all cases the CONTRACTOR must give preference to the 
employment of bona fide residents in the performance of said work. 
 
     The CONTRACTOR further agrees: In consideration of securing the business of constructing the 
works to be constructed under this contract, recognizing the business in which he is engaged is of a 

ITEM ITEM EST.   UNIT TOTAL 
NO. DESCRIPTION QUAN. UNIT PRICE PRICE 

201.4.1.D.1 Removal of Existing Asphalt 675 SY $4.00  $2,700.00  

307.4.1.E.1 Type "C" Surface Restoration (Gravel Roadway) 482 SY $10.00  $4,820.00  

307.4.1.G.1 Type "B" Surface Restoration (Superpave HMA, Class 
SP-3, ½" Aggregate) 600 SY 

$28.00  $16,800.00  

401.4.1.A.1 SCHEDULE A (Waterline Replacement) 1 LS $10,000.00  $10,000.00  

501.4.1.B.1 Gravity Sewer - Size 8" - Type PVC ASTM 3034 668 LF $50.00  $33,400.00  

502.4.1.A.1 Sanitary Sewer Manhole – 48” Diameter 2 EA $3,000.00  $6,000.00  

502.4.1.G.1 Remove & Dispose of/Abandon Existing Sanitary Sewer 
Manhole 2 EA 

$700.00  $1,400.00  

601.4.1.A.1 Storm Drain Pipe - Size 8" - Type PVC ASTM 3034 5 LF $100.00  $500.00  

601.4.1.A.1 Storm Drain Pipe - Size 8" - Type PVC C900 18 LF $100.00  $1,800.00  

601.4.1.A.1 Storm Drain Pipe - Size 30" - Type ADS ASTM F2736 35 LF $125.00  $4,375.00  

602.4.1.A.1 Storm Drain Manhole - Size 60" 1 EA $4,000.00  $4,000.00  

602.4.1.F.1 Catch Basin – Type 1 2 EA $1,500.00  $3,000.00  

706.4.1.F.1 Concrete Driveway Approach 25 SY $75.00  $1,875.00  

1103.4.1.A.1 Construction Traffic Control 1 LS $1,000.00  $1,000.00  

1104.4.1.C.1 Pavement Markings 1 LS $1,000.00  $1,000.00  

2010.4.1.A.1 Mobilization 1 LS $21,000.00  $21,000.00  

  TOTAL BASE BID:       $113,670.00  



Resolution No. 14-026 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ D ”  

transitory character and that in the pursuit thereof, his property used therein may be without the state 
of Idaho when taxes, excises or license fees to which he is liable become payable, agrees: 
 
 1. To pay promptly when due all taxes (other than on real property), excises and license 

fees due to the State of Idaho, its subdivisions, and municipal and quasi-municipal 
corporations therein, accrued or accruing during the term of this contract, whether or 
not the same shall be payable at the end of such term.  

 
  2. That if the said taxes, excises and license fees are not payable at the end of said term 

but liability for said payment thereof exists, even though the same constitutes liens 
upon his property, to secure the same to the satisfaction of the respective officers 
charged with the collection thereof. 

 
  3.  That in the event of his default in the payment or securing of such taxes, excises and 

license fees, to consent that the department, officer, board or taxing unit entering into 
this contract may withhold from any payment due him thereunder the estimated 
amount of such accrued and accruing taxes, excises and license fees for the benefit of 
all taxing units to which said contractor is liable. 

 
     IT IS FURTHER AGREED that for additions or deductions to the plans and specifications, the unit 
prices as set forth in the written proposal of the CONTRACTOR are hereby made a part of this contract. 
 
     For the faithful performance of this contract in accordance with the plans and specifications and 
payment for all labor and materials, the CONTRACTOR shall execute good and sufficient performance 
bond and payment bond each in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the total amount of the 
bid as herein before stated, said bonds to be executed by a surety company authorized to do business 
in the state of Idaho. 
 
     The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" are defined in “Standard General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract” ISPWC Division 100. 
 
 THIS CONTRACT, with all of its forms, specifications and stipulations, shall be binding upon the 
parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk of the CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE have executed this 
contract on behalf of said city, the City Clerk has affixed the seal of said city hereto, and the 
CONTRACTOR has caused the same to be signed by its President, and its seal to be affixed hereto, the 
day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
CITY:   CONTRACTOR: 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE  BUDDY’S BACKHOE SERVICE, INC.  
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO    
   
By:   By:  
 Steve Widmyer, Mayor   
   
ATTEST:  ATTEST: 
 
 

  

         Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

  

 
 



Resolution No. 14-026 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ D ”  

STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this 1st day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve Widmyer 
and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Coeur 
d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City of Coeur 
d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 

        
 Notary Public for Idaho 
 Residing at       
 My Commission expires:     

 
 
 
 

****************************** 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ___ day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
__________________________, known to me to be the _____________________, of Buddy’s Backhoe 
Service, Inc. and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and 
acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and year in 
this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 

       
Notary Public for      
Residing at       
My Commission Expires:     



GENERAL SERVICES 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Date:  June 23, 2014 

From:  Bill Greenwood, Parks Director 

SUBJECT: RENEWAL OF HANDSHAKE PRODUCTIONS AGREEMENT  
 

  (City Council Action Required) 

 
DECISION POINT:   

The Handshake Productions agreement is up for a three year renewal. 
Recommendation from the Parks and Rec Commission is to renew this agreement. 
 
HISTORY:   

The Summer Concert Series sponsored by Handshake Productions is entering its 20th 
year. This is a very successful event that has become a Sunday afternoon pastime for 
a good number of residents. 
 
FINANCIAL ANAYSIS:   

We do not have any financial outlay for the concert series. All of the funds to produce 
the concerts are raised by Handshake Productions.   
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:   

Attached is the agreement for Handshake Productions. The agreement spells out the 
responsibilities and expectations for Handshake Productions and the city.   
 
DECISION POINT:   

Renew the agreement for three more years with the option for an additional three 
year renewal provided everything runs smoothly with Handshake Productions 
responsibilities.  
 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and dated this 1st day of July, 2014, by and between the City 
of Coeur d'Alene, a municipal corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the state of Idaho, 
hereinafter referred to as the "City," and Handshake Productions, Inc., an Idaho corporation 
organized pursuant to the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as "Handshake," 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Downtown Rotary Club of Coeur d’Alene in years past 
cooperated and worked together to accomplish the construction of the Rotary Lakeside Bandshell 
in the Coeur d'Alene City Park, Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of said Bandshell is to provide music and other entertainment 
for those persons recreating in the Coeur d'Alene City Park which includes many residents of the 
city of Coeur d'Alene; and 
 

WHEREAS, Handshake is experienced in organizing musical performances; and  
 

WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of establishing a concert series for the summers of 
2015, 2016, and 2017;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the terms, conditions, and covenants 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Purpose:  The City, agrees to sponsor the 2015, 2016 and 2017 Rotary Lakeside 
Bandshell Concert Series (Concert Series) in cooperation with certain donors 
whose donations will fund concert performances. 

 
Each concert for the 2015, 2016 and 2017 summer Concert Series shall be 
deemed a special/specific event in accordance with Coeur d’Alene Municipal 
Code section 5.18.040.  

 
2. Limits on City Obligations:  The parties agree that the City shall have no 

obligations regarding the concert series other than those obligations specifically 
set forth in this agreement. 

 
3. No City Financial Obligation:  Handshake agrees that the City shall have no 

obligation to provide any financial contribution to the concert series. 
 
4. Permits:  The City Park’s Department Director shall, with reasonable dispatch, 

process requests for bandshell/loud speaker permits submitted by Handshake for 
the purpose of utilization of the bandshell for the concert series on the dates set 
forth herein.  However, applications for such permits shall be filed timely with the 
City and no later than forty (40) days before a particular concert.  Handshake 
understands and agrees that a bandshell permit and fee is necessary for each 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

performance and the fee shall be paid to the City to recover costs the City incurs 
to facilitate the concert series.  

 
5. Commercial Limitations:  Handshake understands and agrees that the City's 

ownership of the City Park is subject to deed and other limitations which preclude 
activities in the City Park which are commercial in nature and not incidental to 
recreation and park purposes. 

 
A. Concessions Limited:  Except as set forth in paragraph 5(C) entitled “Food 

Vendors,” the parties further agree that neither Handshake nor any of the 
concert series performers or their agents shall solicit, authorize, use or 
operate any food concession in the City Park or on public property during 
the Concert Series.  However, Handshake may sell non-food items such as 
tapes, CD’s, T-shirts, hats, and items directly related to the event. 

 
B. No Charge:  The parties further agree that no charge, fee or attempt to 

collect a charge or fee shall be solicited or requested from persons wishing 
to listen to or watch the Concert Series. 

 
C. Food Vendors:  The parties further agree that the sponsor of each concert 

may provide two food concessions during the summer Concert Series. In 
the event there are multiple sponsors of any one concert, only two food 
concessions will be permitted.   

 
The food concessionaire must comply with all applicable provisions of the 
Coeur d’Alene Municipal Code, including but not necessarily limited to 
obtaining a public health permit, as well as compliance with the provisions 
of 5.18.020(C),(D),(E),(F) and (G). 

 
The parties further agree that the food concessionaire may operate 
between the hours of 12:00 P.M. and 5:00 P.M. Pacific Daylight Time the 
day of the scheduled concert and may only sell food items.  The sale of 
non-food items by the food concessionaire is prohibited. 
 

6. Concert Area Not To Be Delineated:  The parties agree that no specific area shall 
be set aside in any manner whatsoever for the purpose of delineating a specific 
concert listening or watching area.   

 
7. Signs:  The parties agree to the extent permitted by the Coeur d’Alene Municipal 

Codes including, but not limited to the Sign Code (15.24) that signs publicizing 
the Concert Series and recognizing private donors to the concert series may be 
erected. 

 
A. Public Acknowledgment: Donors and performers of each performance 

may be publicly acknowledged at each concert for their respective 
contributions. 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

 
B. Publicity:  The parties further agree that fliers are not permissible pursuant 

to municipal code unless the same are distributed from within a business 
or other private property.  Banners are not permitted by the Coeur d’Alene 
Sign Code, and advertising, other than as set forth herein, shall be by local 
newspapers, television, radio and store front posters.  To the extent 
permitted by law, the City will allow a sign advising of the concert and its 
donors to be located in such places as may be permitted by the Coeur 
d’Alene Sign Code as it now exists and may hereinafter be amended. 

 
8. Finances:  The parties agree that Handshake shall be responsible for all 

contractual arrangements and obligations with performers.  The City’s sole role 
shall be as an administrator for the funds donated by private parties to support the 
Concert Series.   

 
9. Performers:  The parties agree that various municipal codes including Coeur 

d’Alene Municipal Code Chapters 5.18 and 5.44 become applicable as the 
number of individuals attending solely the Concert Series increases above two 
hundred (200) individuals.  Therefore, Handshake agrees to select only those 
performers that Handshake reasonably believes will attract no more than two 
hundred (200) individuals (excluding those individuals that may be originally in 
the park for other purposes) to assure the crowd remains manageable and not a 
threat to public welfare and health.  To this end Handshake agrees to submit, for 
approval, a list of proposed performers to the City Park Department’s Director no 
later than sixty (60) days before each performance.  In the event the City Park 
Department's Director recommends against a proposed performer, Handshake 
agrees to find another performer(s).  

 
10. Sponsor List:  Handshake agrees it shall provide a list of proposed donors to the 

City Treasurer for approval no later than May 1, 2015, for the summer 2015 
Concert Series, no later than May 1, 2016 for the 2016 summer Concert Series, 
and no later than May 1, 2017 for the 2017 Summer Concert Series, noting the 
amount of the donor’s donation.  The City acting through its City Treasurer shall 
in its sole discretion approve or disapprove of the program donors. 

 
11. Concert Schedule:  The parties agree that there shall be eleven (11) concerts 

during the summers of 2015, 2016, and 2017, from 1:00 P.M. to 4:00 P.M. Pacific 
Daylight Time.   

 
The dates of the 11 concerts in 2015 shall be as follows:  July 5th, 12th, 19th and 
26th; August 9th, 16th, 23rd and 30th; September 6th, 13th and 20th. 

 
The dates of the 11 concerts in 2016 shall be as follows: July 3rd, 10th, 17th, 24th 
and 31st; August 14th, 21st and 28th, September 4th, 11th and 18th. 

 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

The dates of the 11 concerts in 2017 shall be as follows: July 2nd, 9th, 16th, 23rd 
and 30th; August 13th, 20th and 27th; September 3rd, 10th and 17th. 

 
A. The parties agree that Handshake shall have an appropriate back-up venue 

in the event of inclement weather in its agreements with performers to 
insure that a concert does indeed take place.   

 
B. The parties agree the City may, from time to time, unilaterally cancel 

summer concert series events for reasons deemed by the City to be in the 
best interest of public welfare and safety. 

 
12. Additional Specific Duties of Handshake:  The parties agree that Handshake will:  
 

A. Secure sufficient donors and collect donations to cover the costs of the 
Concert Series and deposit the amount with the City.  If sufficient donors 
making a contribution of Thirty and three thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($33,000.00) by May 1, 2015 for the 2015 Summer Concert Series, and 
May 1, 2016, for the 2016 Summer Concert Series, and May 1, 2017, for 
the 2017 Summer Concert Series have not been acquired, the parties may 
agree to a downsized concert series consistent with the amount of funds 
received from donors.  Handshake shall neither contract nor initiate 
contract negotiations beyond the budgeted amounts set forth in Exhibit 
“A.”  

 
B. In the event donations for the concert series exceed the budgeted amount 

of Thirty and three thousand and No/100 Dollars ($33,000.00) set forth in 
Exhibit “A” the funds to the extent permitted by law shall be utilized for 
additional concerts in each respective year. 

 
C. Develop the performers’ contracts which shall be subject to the terms of 

this agreement and all applicable laws of the State of Idaho and city of 
Coeur d’Alene. 

 
1. Include in the contracts with performers that they will not possess 

or use alcoholic beverages, or illegal drugs, in the City Park. 
Further, Handshake will include in performers’ contracts that 
tobacco products will not be possessed or used by performers on 
stage or in the park buildings. 

 
2. Include in contracts with performers a provision that performers 

will perform in appropriate attire, including shirts, and excluding 
swim wear.  

 
3. Include in the contracts, that the performers will obtain Worker’s 

Compensation coverage or will agree to indemnify the City against 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 5 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

any loss resulting from the performer’s failing to obtain Worker’s 
Compensation coverage. 

 
D. Be at the Rotary Lakeside Bandshell at the Coeur d’Alene City Park at 

least two (2) hours before a performance begins to ensure the performers 
begin on time and to assist with their set up. 

 
E. Remain in attendance throughout the performance and act as Master of 

Ceremonies to ensure a smooth running performance. 
 
F. Remain until the performers leave to ensure a speedy break down and 

departure. 
 
G. Take care of all publicity, press releases, bulletin/calendar announcements 

and media advertising. 
 
H. Handshake shall coordinate its performance with the City Art’s 

Commission in order to work towards a common goal of furthering arts 
and entertainment for the benefit of the citizens of Coeur d’Alene 
including coordinating of scheduled events.  

 
13. The parties agree to the budget set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this 

reference incorporated herein. 
 
14. Renegotiation:  Lessee may request in writing a three (3) extension of this 

agreement for the 2015, 2016 and 2017 summer Concert Series by submitting to 
Lessor a written request for this extension after May 1, 2016, and prior to 
November 1, 2016. Upon receipt of such request, the Parks and Recreation 
Commission, in its sole discretion, may recommend to the City that a three (3) 
year extension of the agreement with Handshake Productions be negotiated with 
the City. If the three (3) year extension is approved, Lessee may, during the term 
of the extended agreement, request in writing another three (3) year extension for 
the 2018, 2019 and 2020 summer Concert Series by submitting to Lessor a written 
request for this extension after May 1, 2019, and prior to November 1, 2019. 
Upon receipt of such request, the Parks and Recreation Commission, in its sole 
discretion, may recommend to the City that another three (3) year extension with 
Handshake Productions be negotiated with the City. 

 
15. Default:  Time is of the essence of the agreement and Handshake shall be 

considered in default upon the failure to perform any of the terms of this 
agreement and the City may terminate the contract.  Provided, however, before 
declaring Handshake in default the City shall notify Handshake in writing of the 
particulars in which it deems Handshake to be in default, and Handshake shall 
have seven (7) days from the time such written notice has been placed in the 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 6 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

United States Mail addressed to Handshake at the last address Handshake has left 
with the City, with proper postage affixed, within which to remedy the default.  In 
lieu of service by mail, a notice of default or of termination may be served in the 
manner provided for the service of process under the Idaho Rules of Civil 
Procedure, Rule 5 (b). 

 
16. Termination for Convenience of City:  The site of the location is within the Urban 

Renewal District and in the downtown area of Coeur d’Alene.  Development of 
the downtown area or the development of the City’s downtown properties may 
require the City to cancel use of the bandshell. The parties agree City may at any 
time after ten (10) day’s written notice terminate this agreement.  The notice of 
the cancellation by the City of this agreement for no cause shall be given in the 
same manner as notice of termination in case of default.  In such event neither 
party shall have a claim against the other. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the city of Coeur d’Alene has caused this agreement to be 

executed by its Mayor and City Clerk and its corporate seal affixed hereto, and Handshake 
Productions, Inc. has caused the same to be executed the day and year first above written.  
 
CITY OF CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE HANDSHAKE PRODUCTIONS, INC.  
 
 
 
By: _________________________ By: _________________________ 
 Steve Widmyer, Mayor                                                  , President 
 
 
ATTEST: ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________   
Renata McLeod, City Clerk                                                 , Secretary 

 



 

Resolution No. 14-026 7 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this 1st day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of 
the City of Coeur d'Alene and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 

       
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at       
My Commission expires:     

 

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ______ day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
__________________________ and ______________________, known to me to be the 
President and Secretary, respectively, of Handshake Productions, Inc., and the persons who 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that 
such corporation executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 

       
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at       
My Commission expires:     



 

Resolution No. 14-026 8 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ E ”  

Exhibit “A” 
 
 

 BUDGET FOR SUMMER CONCERT SERIES – 2015-2017 
 

 

Eleven (11) Concerts each summer for 2014, 2015 and 2017 = $33,000.00 each series. 
 

$  12,925.00 BAND COSTS (Payment to the concert performers will be 
1,175.00 per concert.) 

 
$  13,750.00 PRODUCTION COSTS (Each concert will cost $1,250.00 in 

production costs.)  
 
$    2,750.00 FUNDRAISING (Each concert will cost $250.00 for  
  fundraising.) 
 
$     1,375.00 BANDSHELL (Each concert will cost $125.00 in fees for use of  
  the bandshell.) 
 
$     2,200.00 PUBLICITY (Each concert will cost $200.00 in publicity.) 
 
$33,000.00 TOTAL 

 
 

The Summer Concert Series will consist of eleven (11) concerts each summer for 
2015, 2016 and 2017. The following is the budget for expenses per show: 

  
Item Expense 
Band $   1,175.00 
Production $   1,250.00 
Fund Raising $   250.00 
Bandshell $     125.00 
Publicity $   200.00 

Total $3,000.00 
 



CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT  

 
DATE: June 11, 2014 
 
FROM: Ron Clark 
  Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Enter into an agreement with North Idaho College to provide one police 

officer on campus for the 2014-2015 school year.  
 
 
Decision Point:   
 
Should the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into a contract to initiate a School Resource 
Officer program and provide one police officer to be assigned to the North Idaho 
College campus for fiscal school year 2014-2015. 
 
History:   
 
The City of Coeur d’Alene and North Idaho College have maintained a positive working 
relationship.  The police department has responded to calls for service on the campus 
with appreciation from the NIC administration.  In response to national and local trends 
with regard to providing campus safety, NIC has deemed a police presence as a 
positive enhancement to their campus.   
 
Financial Analysis:   
 
North Idaho College has agreed to pay $50,000 of the personnel costs associated with 
this program as well as all the overtime costs incurred by the School Resource Officer 
for school events.  We are requesting to hire an additional police officer for this new 
SRO position, which would be responsible for specifically monitoring and patrolling the 
college campus. In order to prepare for this transition, we would like to hire the officer 
immediately in anticipation of this new program.  The salary costs to hire this officer in 
the current budget year would be fully covered from the current budget with salary 
savings.   
 
 
Performance Analysis:   
 
The SRO program has proven to be a positive impact on public school campuses. The 
SRO program has provided the police department an open communication link with 
students, educators and citizens that have directly resulted in solving several crimes 
that might not have been solved.   This new program would likewise be able to achieve 
such community policing enhancements.  This would allow additional police services in 
the North Idaho College campus and Fort Grounds area of Coeur d’Alene. Hiring a 
police officer immediately gives us the benefit of training an officer for the transition of 
assigning an officer to the college as an SRO.  In addition we would have the benefit of 
using that officer for patrol during the busy summer months.  This new position is a 
benefit to the college and the City of Coeur d’Alene.   



 
 
 
Quality of Life Analysis:   
 
The history of our SRO program has provided an excellent way for police, students, 
teachers, and other citizens to interact in a positive proactive manner.  The full impact of 
these programs on the quality of life is sometimes hard to measure.  The feedback from 
all involved believe the schools are a safer place.  In addition they feel the police and 
citizens have a more positive relationship.   These same positive characteristics of the 
SRO program would be prevalent at North Idaho College.    
 
Decision Point:  
 
Should the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into a contract to begin a School Resource 
Officer program and provide one police officer to be assigned to the North Idaho 
College campus for fiscal school year 2014-2015.  



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ F ”  
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
 

NORTH IDAHO COLLEGE 
 

and 
 

  THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
 

for 
 

EMPLOYMENT OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS  
DISTRICT'S FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2014, by and between North 

Idaho College, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as NIC, and the City of Coeur 
d'Alene, having its principal business office located at 710 Mullan, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, 
hereinafter referred to as CITY. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, safety and security on and around the college campus is an essential element 
for a positive educational environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the safety and well-being of students, faculty, staff and administration, on 
NIC campus is a concern shared by both the CITY and NIC, and a coordinated effort is deemed 
the most effective and efficient means to provide for campus security; and 
  

WHEREAS, the presence of uniformed police officers on the college campus, in addition 
to basic law enforcement services, allows for an array of police services to be provided to both 
students and staff such as the dissemination of information about the police department, the 
criminal justice system, emergency response best practices, and alcohol and drug abuse 
prevention. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties to this agreement do mutually agree as follows: 
 
I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY 
 

1. CITY agrees to provide one (1) School Resource Officer in order to provide a 
uniformed high visibility presence on and around the NIC campus, located in the City of 
Coeur d'Alene; and 

 
2. CITY agrees to furnish normal equipment for the officer who performs this 
service, including use of Coeur d'Alene Police Department vehicles; and 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ F ”  
  

 
3. CITY agrees the officer will facilitate classroom and faculty presentations related 
the law, at NIC. The School Resource Officer (SRO) will investigate related criminal 
cases on campus, continue to work with community agencies in emergency response 
procedures, schedule security activities as needed, be the first responder in all law 
enforcement related matters as they occur during regularly scheduled work hours for the 
officer; and 

 
4. CITY agrees to have the officer attend various sporting events and other extra 
curricular activities as needed for pro-active enforcement and interaction; and 

 
5. CITY agrees to document and investigate all incidents of crime as per the police 
department's policies and procedures. 

 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF NIC 
 

1. NIC agrees to provide office space, furnishings and supplies for a School 
Resource Officer; and 

 
2. NIC agrees to furnish any special equipment or material necessary for the 
performance of this service as such equipment or material shall be identified and agreed 
to by the parties in writing; and 

 
3. NIC agrees the officer shall be responsible primarily to their Police Department 
Supervisor and secondarily to the President. or their designee at NIC 
 
4.  NIC agrees to pay all overtime for the School Resource Officer.  

 
 
III. CONTROL AND JURISDICTION 
 

Prevention, education and training may take place at NIC located in the City of Coeur 
d'Alene as such activity relates to NIC. 
 

The School Resource Officer will remain under the employment, direction, and control of 
the Coeur d’Alene Police Department.  The Resource Officer is an employee of the City of Coeur 
d’Alene as employee is defined under Idaho Code 6-902(4).  The City of Coeur d’Alene shall 
remain responsible for the actions of the School Resource Officer, and shall maintain liability 
insurance, or self insurance as the case may be in order to protect NIC from any claims under the 
Idaho Tort Claims Act, Idaho Code 6-901 et seq., or any other alleged act or omission of the 
School Resource Officer including but not limited to alleged Civil Rights violations. 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ F ”  
  

NIC shall endeavor to provide the CITY with requests for additional officers, or for work 
assignments occurring outside regular school hours (that are not usual police duties) prior to the 
beginning of the school year.  NIC will update the CITY at reasonable intervals in order to assist 
the CITY in scheduling officers.  Any requests for services by the CITY outside the scope of this 
agreement shall be negotiated for compensation prior to the incurrence of such work 
assignments, the same shall be agreed to in writing. 
 
IV. CONSIDERATION 
 

In consideration of all services hereinbefore described, NIC agrees to pay and 
CITY agrees to accept in full payment therefore the amount of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 
($50,000.00) to be billed in two equal installments.  The first installment to billed during the first 
quarter ( July, August, September)  and the remaining to be paid during the third quarter 
(January, February, March) of the school fiscal year. All overtime expenses will be billed 
quarterly. 
 
V. TERM, AMENDMENT, RENEWAL AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect for the 2014-2015 NIC fiscal 
year. 

 
2. This Agreement may be amended or renewed in writing by consent of CITY and 
NIC as permitted by law. 

 
3. This Agreement may be terminated at any time in writing by mutual consent of 
CITY and NIC. 

 
4. On or before July 1, 2015, both parties shall meet to evaluate the program prior to 
deciding whether to continue. 

  
 
VI. IDAHO LAW CONTROLS 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed by CITY and NIC that the laws of the State of Idaho 
shall govern them and the interpretation of this Agreement shall be initiated exclusively in the 
Courts of the State of Idaho. 
 
VII. SUCCESSORS-IN-INTEREST AND ASSIGNS 
 

All terms, conditions and provisions hereof shall inure to and shall bind the parties 
hereto, their respective successors in interest and assigns. 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ F ”  
  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, CITY and NIC have caused the Agreement to be signed in 
their behalf by duly authorized representative on the 1st day of July, 2014, pursuant to Resolution 
No. 14-026, authorized the City Mayor to sign same. 
 
 
 
  
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE   NORTH IDAHO COLLEGE 
 
 

 
By:  ________________________ By:  __________________________ 
 Steve Widmyer, Mayor  Joe Dunlap, President 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________              ______________________________  
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Shannon Goodrich, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

 
APPROVED as to form and legality this 1st day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
By: _______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 
Michael C. Gridley, City Attorney Mark Lyons, Attorney for North Idaho College 



CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT  

 
DATE: June 11, 2014 
 
FROM: Ron Clark 
  Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: School Resource Officer Agreement between the Coeur d’Alene School District 

#271 and the City of Coeur d’Alene.  
 
 
Decision Point:   
 
Should the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into a contract to continue the School Resource Officer 
program with School District #271 for fiscal year 2014-2015. 
 
History:   
 
The City of Coeur d’Alene and School District #271 have maintained the SRO partnership since 
1999.  Both the Police Department and the School District have deemed the SRO program not 
only successful, but vital to providing campus safety.  The partnership’s success can be tangibly 
measured in the reduction of campus related crimes and case clearance rates.  
 
Financial Analysis:   
 
The school district has agreed to pay $365,654.77 of the personnel costs associated with this 
program as well as all the overtime costs incurred by the School Resource Officers for school 
events.   
 
Performance Analysis:   
 
The SRO program has specifically impacted campus crime as documented by standard crime 
reporting data.  The SRO program has provided the police department an open communication 
link with students, educators and citizens that have directly resulted in solving several crimes 
that might not have been solved.   
 
Quality of Life Analysis:   
 
The SRO program has provided an excellent way for police, students, teachers, and other citizens 
to interact in a positive proactive manner.  The full impact of these programs on the quality of 
life is sometimes hard to measure.  The feedback from all involved truly believes the schools are 
a safer place.  In addition they feel the police and citizens have a more positive relationship.    
 
Decision Point:  
 
Should the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into a contract to continue the School Resource Officer 
program with School District #271 for fiscal year 2014-2015.  



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ G ”  
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
 

COEUR D’ALENE SCHOOL DISTRICT #271 
 

and 
 

  THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
 

for 
 

EMPLOYMENT OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS  
DISTRICT'S FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  day of July, 2014, by and between School 

District #271, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as DISTRICT, and the City of Coeur 
d'Alene, having its principal business office located at 710 Mullan, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, 
hereinafter referred to as CITY. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, safety and security on and around high school, middle school, and 
elementary school campuses is an essential element for a positive educational environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the safety and well being of students on high school, middle school, and 
elementary school campuses is a concern shared by both the CITY and the DISTRICT, and a 
coordinated effort is deemed the most effective and efficient means to provide for campus 
security; and 
  

WHEREAS, the presence of uniformed police officers on school campuses, in addition to 
basic law enforcement services, allows for an array of police services to be provided to both 
students and staff such as the dissemination of information on the police department, the criminal 
justice system, gang intervention and prevention, and alcohol and drug abuse prevention. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties to this agreement do mutually agree as follows: 
 
I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY 
 

1. CITY agrees to provide six (7) School Resource Officers in order to provide a 
uniformed high visibility presence on and around the high school, middle school and 
elementary campuses, located in the City of Coeur d'Alene; and 

 
2. CITY agrees to furnish normal equipment for officers who perform this service, 
including use of Coeur d'Alene Police Department vehicles; and 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ G ”  
  

 
3. CITY agrees the officers will facilitate classroom and faculty presentations related 
to the youth and the law, at elementary schools, Coeur d'Alene High School, Lake City 
High School, Venture High School, Woodland Middle School, Canfield Middle School, 
Lakes Middle School, and the following 7 Elementary’ s – Borah, Bryan, Fernan, 
Ramsey, Skyway, Sorenson, and Winton. SRO’s will investigate youth related criminal 
cases, continue to work with community agencies and parent/teacher groups, schedule 
security activities as needed, be the first responder in all law enforcement related matters 
as they occur during regularly scheduled work hours for the officer; and 

 
4. CITY agrees to have officers attend various sporting events and other extra 
curricular activities as needed for pro-active enforcement and interaction; and 

 
5. CITY agrees to document and investigate all incidents of crime as per the police 
department's policies and procedures. 

 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT 
 

1. DISTRICT agrees to provide office space, furnishings and supplies for each 
School Resource Officer; and 

 
2. DISTRICT agrees to furnish any special equipment or material necessary for the 
performance of this service as such equipment or material shall be identified and agreed 
to by the parties in writing; and 

 
3. DISTRICT agrees each officer shall be responsible primarily to their Police 
Department Supervisor and secondarily to the principal of the high school to which they 
are assigned. 
 
4.  DISTRICT agrees to pay all overtime for the School Resource Officers.  

 
III. CONTROL AND JURISDICTION 
 

Prevention, education and training may take place at elementary schools, Coeur d'Alene 
High School, Lake City High School, Venture High School, Woodland Middle School, Canfield 
Middle School and Lakes Middle School located in the City of Coeur d'Alene as such activity 
relates to the DISTRICT. 
 

The School Resource Officers will remain under the employment, direction, and control 
of the Coeur d’Alene Police Department.  The Resource Officers are employees of the City of 
Coeur d’Alene as employee is defined under Idaho Code 6-902(4).  The City of Coeur d’Alene 
shall remain responsible for the actions of the School Resource Officers, and shall maintain 
liability insurance, or self insurance as the case may be in order to protect the district from any 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ G ”  
  

claims under the Idaho Tort Claims Act, Idaho Code 6-901 et seq., or any other alleged act or 
omission of the School Resource Officers including but not limited to alleged Civil Rights 
violations. 
 

The DISTRICT shall endeavor to provide the CITY with requests for additional officers 
or for work assignments occurring outside regular high school or middle school hours (that are 
not usual police duties) prior to the beginning of the school year.  DISTRICT will update the 
CITY at reasonable intervals in order to assist the CITY in scheduling officers.  Any requests for 
services by the CITY outside the scope of this agreement shall be negotiated for compensation 
prior to the incurrence of such work assignments, the same shall be agreed to in writing. 
 
IV. CONSIDERATION 
 

In consideration of all services hereinbefore described, DISTRICT agrees to pay and 
CITY agrees to accept in full payment therefore the amount of Three Hundred Sixty Five 
Thousand Six Hundred Fifty Four and 77/100 ($365,654.77) to be paid quarterly with the 
exception of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75.000) previously agreed in the committal letter 
dated December 12th 2013. This amount will be billed by the Police Department anytime after 
July 1st 2014.  
 
V. TERM, AMENDMENT, RENEWAL AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect for the 2014-2015 public school 
fiscal year. 

 
2. This Agreement may be amended or renewed in writing by consent of CITY and 
DISTRICT as permitted by law. 

 
3. This Agreement may be terminated at any time in writing by mutual consent of 
CITY and DISTRICT. 

 
4. On or before July 1, 2015, both parties shall meet to evaluate the program prior to 
deciding whether to continue. 

  
 
VI. IDAHO LAW CONTROLS 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed by CITY and DISTRICT that the laws of the State 
of Idaho shall govern them and the interpretation of this Agreement shall be initiated exclusively 
in the Courts of the State of Idaho. 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-026 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ G ”  
  

VII. SUCCESSORS-IN-INTEREST AND ASSIGNS 
 

All terms, conditions and provisions hereof shall inure to and shall bind the parties 
hereto, their respective successors in interest and assigns. 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, CITY and DISTRICT have caused the Agreement to be signed 
in their behalf by duly authorized representative on the _____ day of July, 2014, pursuant to 
Resolution No. 14-026, authorized the City Mayor to sign same. 
  
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE   COEUR D’ALENE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
#271 
 
 

 
By:  ________________________ By:  __________________________ 
 Steve Widmyer, Mayor  Tom Hearn, Chairperson 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Lynn Towne, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

 
APPROVED as to form and legality this ______ day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
By: _______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 
Michael C. Gridley, City Attorney Mark Lyons, Attorney for School District 271 



ANNOUNCEMENTS 





OTHER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
(Requiring Council Action) 



Public Works Committee 06/23/14 
 

1 

June 23, 2014 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT                                                STAFF PRESENT 
Council Member Dan Gookin          Amy Ferguson, Executive Assistant  
Council Member Kiki Miller     Sid Fredrickson, WW Superintendent 
Council Member Woody McEvers      Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 
        Troy Tymesen, Interim City Administrator 
        Mike Becker, WW Project Manager 
        Ron Clark, Interim Police Chief 
        Keith Erickson 
         
         
 
Item 1  McEuen Park Harbor House Concession Lease Agreement  
Consent Calendar 
 
Troy Tymesen, Finance Director, presented a request on behalf of Bill Greenwood, Parks Director, for 
council approval of the Rotary Harbor House Concession lease to Hinderer Concessions.   
 
Mr. Greenwood stated in his staff report that the Harbor House Concession was completed in June and is 
ready to provide concession services to park patrons.  Hinderer Concessions will pay $4,500 for this 
single season lease beginning July 3, 2014 and ending September 30, 2014, and will operate the 
concession area 7 days a week.  The funds will be placed in the Park Capital Improvement Fund.  Staff 
will prepare a new RFQ early next year for the 2015 season in anticipation of the installation of the 220 
volt power and grease traps.   
 
Mr. Tymesen confirmed that this lease was put out to bid and that Hinderer Concessions is a local 
business.  He also noted that the menu could potentially be expanded was the power and grease traps 
issues are resolved.     
 
MOTION:   Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend Council approval of Resolution 
No. 14-___ authorizing the Rotary Harbor House Concession lease to Hinderer Concessions.  
Motion carried. 
 
Item 2  Renewal of Handshake Productions Agreement 
Consent Calendar 
 
Troy Tymesen, Finance Director, presented a request on behalf of Bill Greenwood, Parks Director, for 
council approval of the renewal of the Handshake Productions agreement for the Summer Concert series.   
 
Mr. Greenwood stated in his staff report that the Summer Concert series is entering its 20th year and is a 
very successful event that has become a Sunday afternoon past-time for a good number of residents.  
There is no financial outlay for the concert series as all of the funds needed to produce the concerts are 
raised by Handshake Productions.  The renewal period would be for three years with the option for an 
additional three years. 
 



Public Works Committee 06/23/14 
 

2 

Mr. Tymesen noted that the lease renewal has been approved by the Parks & Rec Commission, and that 
all of the funds needed to present the concerts are raised by Handshake Productions.  There is no charge 
to attend the concerts.     
 
Mr. Tymesen confirmed that this lease agreement is just for concerts in the City Park, but it is possible 
that the agreement could be modified to include concerts in McEuen Park once the grass grows in.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked about the language in the agreement that ties the city to accepting a list of 
program donors.  Mr. Tymesen explained that the city, as a partner, wants to be made aware of where the 
money is coming from, i.e., legitimate businesses, etc.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked if the city has considered the Arts Commission as a potential donor.  Mr. 
Tymesen explained that the Arts Commission funds are dedicated based on an interpretation of the way 
the arts ordinance was written.  It would need to be looked at to determine if an event of this kind would 
qualify.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller, seconded by Gookin, to recommend council approval of Resolution 
No. 14-___ authorizing the renewal of the agreement with Handshake Productions for the Summer 
Concert series.   Motion carried. 
 
 
Item 3  Bid Results for the 2014 Open Trench Project 
Consent Calendar 
 
Troy Tymesen, Interim City Administrator, presented a request on behalf of Mike Becker, Wastewater 
Utility Project Manager, for city council acceptance and award of the City of Coeur d’Alene Wastewater 
Utility’s 2014 Open Trench Project contract to Buddy’s Backhoe Service in the amount of $113,670.00. 
 
Mr. Becker stated in his staff report that in accordance with Idaho Code, this project was advertised in the 
Coeur d’Alene Press on June 3, 2014 and June 10, 2014 soliciting sealed bids that would replace 
approximately 670 LF of existing sewer piping and appurtenances at two (2) separate locations.  The 
apparent low bid was submitted by Buddy’s Backhoe Service with a total bid price of $113,670.00.  The 
Wastewater Utility planned for this project during the FY 2013/14 budget and has the available funds.  
Buddy’s Backhoe Service has successfully completed numerous open trench projects. 
 
Mr. Tymesen noted that the engineer’s estimate was $157,000.00, and he recommended that the council 
accept the low bid as the law requires.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked if a bid received was more than a certain percentage lower than the 
engineer’s bid, would it have to be approved.  Mr. Wilson said that there is nothing in the code that 
speaks to that and, in fact, they are required by law to accept the low bidder.  The only way around that is 
if you prequalify bidders, which is a two-step process where they have people submit their qualifications, 
and the people who get through that process are asked to submit bids.  Mr. Tymesen noted that it has been 
a very positive benefit for the community that the city utilized the extra prequalification step in regard to 
the WWTP expansion. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend council approval of Resolution 
No. 14-___ authorizing an agreement with Buddy’s Backhoe Service for the City of Coeur d’Alene 
Wastewater Utility’s 2014 Open Trench Project in the amount of $113,670.00.  Motion carried. 
 
 



Public Works Committee 06/23/14 
 

3 

 
 
Item 4  Agreement with Coeur d’Alene School District for SRO 
Consent Calendar 
 
Ron Clark, Interim Police Chief, presented a request for council approval of a contract with Coeur 
d’Alene School District #271 to continue the School Resource Officer program for fiscal year 2014-2015. 
 
Chief Clark stated in his staff report that the City of Coeur d’Alene and School District #271 have 
maintained the SRO relationship since 1999.  Both the Police Department and the School District have 
deemed the SRO program not only successful, but vital to providing campus safety.  The partnership’s 
success can be tangibly measured in the reduction of campus related crimes and case clearance rates. 
 
The school district has agreed to pay $365,654.77 of the personnel costs associated with this program as 
well as all the overtime costs incurred by the School Resource Officers for school events.  The SRO 
program has provided the police department an open communication link with students, educators and 
citizens that have directly resulted in solving several crimes that might not have been solved.  The SRO 
program has also provided an excellent way for police, students, teachers, and other citizens to interact in 
a positive proactive manner.   
 
Chief Clark noted that in an earlier staff report, the School District proposed to expand from 6 to 7 
officers and they also proposed to purchase a car and to fully pay for an officer for a year in the amount of 
$75,000.  That staff report went through General Services and was subsequently approved by the council.  
That agreement is included in the proposed contract.     
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend Council approval of Resolution 
No. 14-___ authorizing an agreement with the Coeur d’Alene School District #271 for School 
Resource Officers for Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  Motion carried. 
 
 
Item 5  Agreement with North Idaho College for SRO 
Consent Calendar 
 
Ron Clark, Interim Police Chief, presented a request for council approval of a contract to initiate a School 
Resource Officer program and provide one police officer to be assigned to the North Idaho College 
campus for fiscal school year 2014-2015. 
 
Chief Clark stated in his staff report that in response to national and local trends with regard to providing 
campus safety, NIC has deemed a police presence as a positive enhancement to their campus.  NIC has 
agreed to pay $50,000 of the personnel costs associated with this program as well as all the overtime costs 
incurred by the School Resource Officer for school events.  The SRO would be responsible for 
specifically monitoring and patrolling the college campus.  In order to prepare for the transition, the PD is 
requesting to hire the officer immediately.  The salary costs to hire the officer in the current budget year 
would be fully covered from the current budget with salary savings.   
 
The staff report also stated that the SRO program has proven to be a positive impact on public school 
campuses and has provided the police department with an open communication link with students, 
educators and citizens that have directly resulted in solving several crimes that might not have been 
solved.  In addition, the PD would have the benefit of using the officer for patrol during the busy summer 
months. 
 



Public Works Committee 06/23/14 
 

4 

Chief Clark said that NIC has their own security department but they are not armed and don’t deal with 
the criminal aspect.  Right now the P.D. is handling about 300 calls a month to the Ft. Ground area and 
NIC.   With the $50,000, they would be agreeing to supply an officer for the 2014-2015 fiscal contract 
year for NIC.  The officer would be present on campus from August to May, Monday through Friday, 
most likely from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  The SRO would also have office space at the college and would 
provide a presence in and around the campus and the Fort Grounds area.  Chief Clark said that they would 
like to hire an officer to fill that position, and since school starts on August 24th, they would like to hire an 
officer immediately in anticipating if being fully trailed and ready to start the school year in August.   
 
Councilmember Miller questioned the amount of $50,000 compared to the higher cost for SRO’s through 
the school district.  Chief Clark said that the school district utilizes a huge commitment of the PD 
resources, including not just the officers, but other infrastructure costs including cars, gasoline, training, 
etc.  For this new program with NIC, they felt that $50,000 is what NIC could afford at this time.  NIC 
will pay for any overtime that is associated with the officer providing support at campus activities.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked what would happen if the charter schools request an SRO and if $50,000 
would be the cost, or would it depend on how big the school is and the number of students.  Chief Clark 
said that it is a negotiation process.  The contract amount with NIC can be reevaluated to see if it is a 
viable program and they want to continue.  If they feel it is not a good situation for the city, they do not 
have to continue the program. 
 
Councilmember McEvers asked about ownership of the NIC beach.  Mr. Wilson confirmed that the beach 
is not in the city boundaries and the P.D. would not be writing tickets there.  He noted that council 
approved the annexation of the NIC beach almost two years ago and it is still in process.  He will contact 
the attorney and see where they are at.     
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend council approval of an 
agreement with North Idaho College for a School Resource Officer for fiscal school year 2014-2015.  
Motion carried. 
 
 
Item 6  7635 N. Ramsey Road Request to Exclude (De-Annex) Property from City 
  City Boundaries 
Agenda Item 
 
Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney, presented a request on behalf of the property owners to exclude a 
4.65 acre parcel located at 7635 N. Ramsey Road from the city boundaries.   
 
Mr. Wilson stated in his staff report that the subject property was annexed in 2006 as part of a planned 
development, which never occurred.  Prior to annexation a home was constructed on the subject property 
but the owner never sought a certificate of occupancy from Kootenai County for the structure and it 
appears that the builder did not adhere to the plans submitted to Kootenai County.  The owner is now 
seeking to sell the property and needs to obtain a certificate of occupancy.  In order for the City to issue a 
certificate of occupancy, it will need to issue a building permit and determine that the structure was 
constructed in conformity with the building code.  Additionally, the property’s septic system will need to 
be enlarged.  Because the structure is complete, the City would need to obtain engineering reports and 
perform destructive testing to issue a certificate of occupancy.  As such, the owner has elected to seek de-
annexation and will attempt to obtain a certificate of occupancy from Kootenai County, who has some 
record of what was done in hopes of resolving the issues.  
 



Public Works Committee 06/23/14 
 

5 

Mr. Wilson stated that the building issues are problematic.  Under Idaho Code, the council, via publishing 
an ordinance, can deannex a property, but the property will remain subject to any indebtedness that will 
occur.  There would be some tax revenue loss to the city.  Mr. Wilson further explained that the applicant 
is out of state and could not be present at the meeting today.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if the property was on city water.  Mr. Wilson said that they are in the 
Hayden Lake Irrigation District.  There is no sewer at the property because the development never 
happened.  There are no deannexation fees, but the property owner could potentially be facing annexation 
fees again in the future.  Mr. Warren said that he thinks this is the best solution because the county 
actually did the inspections, although the property wasn’t built to plan.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if he would be allowed to talk to the county about this situation.  Mr. 
Wilson said that he could.     
 
Councilmember Miller asked if all of the property surrounding the parcel is in the city.  Mr. Wilson said 
no, the property is right on the edge of the city limits.     
 
Mr. Wilson confirmed that the property owner would not be getting their annexation fees back.  He 
confirmed that it is a difficult situation and, frankly, there is no good solution.  He confirmed that a 
deannexation is done by a published ordinance, but no hearing is required.  Once the council takes action, 
then the applicant would need to hire a surveyor to redefine the city boundary.  Once the map has been 
accepted, then they can bring the ordinance forward and publish it.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller,  seconded by Gookin, to recommend that the Council approve the 
requested deannexation.    Motion carried.  
 
The meeting adjourned at  4:42 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amy C. Ferguson 
Public Works Committee Liaison 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

 
DATE:  June 23, 2014  

FROM: Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney  

SUBJECT: 7635 N. Ramsey Road Request to Exclude (De-Annex) Property from 
City Boundaries.  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT:  
Provide a recommendation to the full council regarding whether to exclude an 
approximate 4.65 acre parcel located at 7635 N. Ramsey Road from the city boundaries. 
 
HISTORY: 
I.C. 50-225 authorizes the City Council to exclude property from city boundaries by 
ordinance.  The subject property was annexed in 2006 as part of a planned development, 
which never occurred.  Prior to annexation a home was constructed on the subject 
property but the owner never sought a certificate of occupancy from Kootenai County for 
the structure and it appears that the builder did not adhere to the plans submitted to 
Kootenai County.  The owner is now seeking to sell the property and needs to obtain a 
certificate of occupancy.  In order for the City to issue a certificate of occupancy, it will 
need to issue a building permit and determine that the structure was constructed in 
conformity with the building code.  Additionally, the property’s septic system will need 
to be enlarged.  Because the structure is complete, the City would need to obtain 
engineering reports and perform destructive testing to issue a certificate of occupancy.  
As such, the owner has elected to seek de-annexation and will attempt to obtain a 
certificate of occupancy from Kootenai County.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The proposed exclusion will have a limited financial impact on the City.  Idaho Code 
section 50-225 allows a city to exclude territory from its city limits provided that the 
excluded property is not relieved of its obligation for any outstanding indebtedness such 
as bonds, improvement districts etc.  Further, the applicant will be responsible to generate 
a new boundary map and legal description and will need to pay annexation fees for the 
area when the entire property is ultimately annexed into the City.  However, the city 
could potentially see a nominal decrease in property tax revenue from the property. 
 
PERFORMANCE/QUALITY OF LIFE ANALYSIS: 
Given the size and location of the property, excluding the property should not alter the 
quality of life for residents or negatively impact the ability of the city to provide services 
to surrounding properties.   
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend to the full City Council that the requested property be excluded from the city 
limits. 



 

Subject Property 



OTHER BUSINESS 



F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\July 1, 2014\SR - Welch Comer 4corner-blm master plan funding.doc 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date: July 1, 2014 
From: Bill Greenwood, Interim Park Director 

SUBJECT: Four Corners/ BLM Master Plan Funding   
 
 
DECISION POINT:  
Staff recommends to City Council to accept the negotiated agreement with Welch/ 
Comer to write the Four Corners/BLM Master Plan.   
 
HISTORY: 
On May 19, 2014 City Council endorsed and authorized staff to negotiate an agreement 
with Welch/Comer to write the BLM Master Plan. Park and Recreation Commission 
Chairman Scott Cranston and I met and spoke over several days with Phil Boyd and Dell 
Hatch to discuss the scope of work and the final cost of the plan.       
     
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The final cost for the master plan is $118,200. LCDC has offered to fund 75% of the plan 
and the remaining 25% will come from partners within the area of impact for the Master 
Plan and remaining costs would come from the Parks Capital Improvement Fund or 
Parks Impact Fees.        
    
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:    
Welch / Comer will begin on the plan as soon as authorized. The timeline for the 
completion of the plan for adoption by City Council will be early February 2015.    
 
DECISION POINT/ RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends to City Council to accept the negotiated agreement with Welch/ 
Comer to write the Four Corners/BLM Master Plan.   
 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-027 1 | P a g e  

RESOLUTION NO. 14-027 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH WELCH-COMER 
ASSOCIATES, INC. ITS PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AT 350 E. KATHLEEN AVE., 
COEUR D’ALENE, ID. 83815, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PREPARING THE FOUR CORNERS / 
BLM MASTER PLAN. 
         

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Commission of the City of Coeur d'Alene has 
recommended that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Welch-Comer Associates, Inc., for the purpose of preparing The Four Corners / BLM Master Plan 
pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in an agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit "1" and by reference made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into  such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 
  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the City 
enter into an Agreement for preparing the Four Corners / BLM Master Plan, in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision that the 
Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the 
extent the substantive provisions of the agreement remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreement on  behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 1st day of July, 2014.   
 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

Resolution No. 14-027 2 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 



Resolution No. 14-027 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
and 

WELCH-COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
for 

FOUR CORNERS/BLM CORRIDOR MASTER PLAN 
 

THIS Agreement, made and entered into this 1st  day of July, 2014, between the CITY OF 
COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the "City," and WELCH-COMER 
ASSOCIATES, INC., an Idaho corporation, with its principal place of business at 350 E. Kathleen 
Ave, Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant," 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

Section 1. Definition.  In this agreement: 
 
A. The term "City" means the city of Coeur d'Alene, 710 Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, 

Idaho 83814. 
 

B. The term "Consultant" means WELCH –COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC.                   
           

C. The term "Mayor" means the mayor of the city of Coeur d'Alene or his authorized 
representative. 
 

Section 2. Employment of Consultant.  The City hereby agrees to engage the Consultant 
and the Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set forth. 
 

Section 3. Scope of Services. 
 

A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Area Covered: The Consultant shall perform all the necessary services provided under 
this Agreement respecting the tasks set forth in the Scope of Services. 
 

Section 4. Personnel. 
 

A. The Consultant represents that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel 
required to perform its services under this Agreement.  Such personnel shall not be employees of or 
have any contractual relationship with the City. 
 



Resolution No. 14-027 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Consultant or under 
his direct supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and shall be 
authorized under state and local law to perform such services. 
 

C. The Consultant agrees to maintain Workmen's Compensation coverage on all 
employees, including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this Agreement as required by 
Idaho Code Section 72-101 through 72-806.  Should the Consultant fail to maintain such insurance 
during the entire term hereof, the Consultant shall indemnify the City against any loss resulting to the 
City from such failure, either by way of compensation or additional premium liability.  The 
Consultant shall furnish to the City, prior to commencement of the work, such evidence as the City 
may require guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the Employment Security Law 
including, at the option of the City, a surety bond in an amount sufficient to make such payments. 
 

Section 5. Time of Performance. The services of the Consultant shall commence upon 
execution of this Agreement by the Mayor and shall be completed within Sixty (60) days thereafter.  
The period of performance may be extended for additional periods only by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 
 

Section 6. Compensation. 
 

A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the City shall pay the Consultant the total 
sum of ONE HUNDRED EIGHTEEN Thousand TWO HUNDRED Dollars and NO/100 
($118,200.00). 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall not provide any 
additional compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other thing of value to the Consultant 
in connection with performance of agreement duties.  The parties understand and agree that, except 
as otherwise provided in this Section, administrative overhead and other indirect or direct costs the 
Consultant may incur in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have already been 
included in computation of the Consultant's fee and may not be charged to the City. 
 

Section 7. Method and Time of Payment. The City will pay to the Consultant the 
amount set forth in Section 6 which shall constitute the full and complete compensation for the 
Consultant's professional services. That sum will be paid within thirty (30) days after completion of 
all work and approval of all work by the City, and receipt of a billing submitted to the City. Such 
billings shall reflect the total work performed and approved, to date. 
 

Section 8. Termination of Agreement for Cause. If, through any cause, the 
Consultant shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner his obligations under this Agreement, or 
if the Consultant shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, 
the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the 
Consultant of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before 
the effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, 



Resolution No. 14-027 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

studies, surveys, and reports or other material prepared by the Consultant under this agreement shall 
at the option of the City become its property, and the Consultant shall be entitled to receive just and 
equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such documents and materials.  
Equitable compensation shall not exceed the amount reasonably billed for work actually done and 
expenses reasonably incurred. 
 
 Section 9. Termination for Convenience of City. The City may terminate this 
Agreement at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Consultant of such termination 
and specifying the effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished 
documents and other materials as described in Section 8 above shall, at the option of the City, 
become its property. 
 

Section 10. Modifications. The City may, from time to time, require modifications in the 
scope of services of the Consultant to be performed under this Agreement.  The type and extent of 
such services cannot be determined at this time; however, the Consultant agrees to do such work as 
ordered in writing by the City, and the City agrees to compensate the Consultant for such work 
accomplished by written amendment to this Agreement. 
 

Section 11. Equal Employment Opportunity.   
 

A. The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The Consultant shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such actions shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotions, or transfers; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and participation in recreational and 
educational activities.  The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places available for employees 
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of the Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The Consultant will 
cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for any work covered by this 
agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each subconsultant, provided that the 
foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or 
raw materials. 
 

B. The Consultant shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the racial 
and ethnic origin of applicants for employment and employees as the City may require. 

 
C.  The Consultant further agrees, in consideration of securing this agreement, to comply 

will all the requirements of Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 



Resolution No. 14-027 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

 
Section 12. Interest of Members of City and Others. No officer, member, or employee 

of the City and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the governing body 
shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his personal interest or the 
interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he is, directly or indirectly, interested 
or has any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds 
thereof. 
 

Section 13. Assignability. 
 

A. The Consultant shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer 
any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior written consent of the 
City thereto.  Provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to the Consultant from 
the City under this Agreement may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial 
institution without such approval.  Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished 
promptly to the City. 
 

B. The Consultant shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract work or services 
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the City. 
 

Section 14. Interest of Consultant.  The Consultant covenants that he presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such 
interest shall be employed. 
 

Section 15. Findings Confidential.  Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or 
prepared or assembled by the Consultant under this Agreement which the City requests to be kept 
confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Consultant without 
the prior written approval of the City. 
 
 Section 16. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials. No material produced, in 
whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any 
other country.  The City shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 17. Audits and Inspection.  This Agreement anticipates an audit by the city of 
Coeur d’Alene, and infrequent or occasional review of Consultant's documents by City staff.  During 
normal business hours, there shall be made available for examination all of the Consultant's records 
with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement and will permit representatives of the City to 
examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records, and to make audits of all contracts, 



Resolution No. 14-027 5 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

invoiced materials, payrolls, records, or personnel conditions of employment, and other data relating 
to all matters covered by this Agreement. 
 

Section 18. Jurisdiction; Choice of Law. Any civil action arising from this Agreement 
shall be brought in the District Court for the First Judicial District of the State of Idaho at Coeur 
d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho.  The law of the state of Idaho shall govern the rights and 
obligations of the parties. 
 

Section 19. Non-Waiver. The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of this 
Agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the validity of 
this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the City thereafter to enforce each and every 
protection hereof. 
 

Section 20. Permits, Laws and Taxes.  The Consultant shall acquire and maintain in good 
standing all permits, licenses and other documents necessary to its performance under this 
Agreement.  All actions taken by the Consultant under this Agreement shall comply with all 
applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  The Consultant shall pay all taxes pertaining 
to its performance under this Agreement. 
 

Section 21. Relationship of the Parties.  The Consultant shall perform its obligations 
hereunder as an independent contractor of the City.  The City may administer this Agreement and 
monitor the Consultant's compliance with this Agreement but shall not supervise or otherwise direct 
the Consultant except to provide recommendations and to provide approvals pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 22. Integration.  This instrument and all appendices and amendments hereto 
embody the entire agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 
other than those contained herein; and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, 
representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the parties. 
 

Section 23. City Held Harmless.   
 

A. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its officers, 
agents and employees from any liability arising out of the acts, errors, omissions, or negligence, 
including costs and expenses, for or on account of any and all legal actions or claims of any character 
resulting from injuries or damages sustained by any person or persons or property arising from 
Consultant's performance of this Agreement in any way whatsoever.  
 

B. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, 
and employees from and against any and all damages or liability arising out of the Consultant's 
professional acts, errors, and omissions, including costs and expenses for or on account of any and 
all legal actions claims of any character resulting from injuries or damages sustained by persons or 
property arising from Consultant's professional performance of this Agreement.  



Resolution No. 14-027 6 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

 
Section 24. Notification. Any notice under this Agreement may be served upon the 

Consultant or the City by mail at the address provided in Section 1 hereof. 
 
Section 25. Special Conditions.  Standard of Performance and Insurance. 
 
A. Consultant shall maintain general liability insurance naming the City, its entities, and 

its representatives as additional insureds in the amount of at least $500,000.00 for property damage 
or personal injury, death or loss as a result of any one occurrence or accident regardless of the 
number of persons injured or the number of claimants, it being the intention that the minimum limits 
shall be those provided for under Chapter 9, Title 6, Section 24 of the Idaho Code.  
   

B. In performance of professional services, the Consultant will use that degree of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised under similar circumstances by members of the Consultant's 
profession.  Should the Consultant or any of the Consultants’ employees be found to have been 
negligent in the performance of professional services from which the City sustains damage, the 
Consultant has obtained Errors and Omission Insurance in at least the amount of five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000.00).  The Consultant shall maintain, and furnish proof thereof, coverage 
for a period of two years following the completion of the project. 
 

C. The Consultant shall obtain and maintain auto liability insurance in the amount of 
$500,000.00 for the duration of the project. 
 

D. Prior to work under this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish to the City certificates 
of the insurance coverages required herein, which certificates must be approved by the City Attorney.  
Certificates shall provide cancellation notice information that assures at least thirty (30) days written 
notice to the City prior to cancellation of the policy for any reason. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement executed the day and year first written above. 
 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE               WELCH-COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
 
 
_______________________________          
Steve Widmyer, Mayor    Philip F. Boyd, President  
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________         
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Name/Title 
 
 



Resolution No. 14-027 7 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 

STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this 1st day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City 
of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at      
                              My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ___ day of July, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Philip F. Boyd, 
known to me to be the President, of Welch-Comer & Associates, Inc., and the person who executed 
the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such 
corporation executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
                              ________________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at      
                              My Commission Expires:    
 



 

 
 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Resolution No. 14-027 Exhibit "1-A"



Resolution No. 14-026 1 | P a g e  E x h i b i t  “ 1 - B ”   

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

This Exhibit is to be inserted in every agreement/contract subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
associated Regulations. 
 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor/consultant, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows: 
 
1. Compliance with Regulations 

The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted 
programs of United States Department of Transportation (USDOT), Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 
part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Non-discrimination 
The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the 
grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of sub-contractors, including 
procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor shall not participate either directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment 
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3. Solicitations for Sub-contracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment 
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the contractor for work to be 
performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential 
sub-contractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this 
contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national 
origin. 

4. Information and Reports 
The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued 
pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and 
its facilities as may be determined by the contracting agency or the appropriate federal agency to be 
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions.  Where any information 
required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this 
information, the contractor shall so certify to ITD or the USDOT as appropriate, and shall set forth what 
efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Non-compliance 
In the event of the contractor’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the 
contracting agency shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be 
appropriate, including, but not limited to: 
 
• Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or; 
• Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

 
Incorporation of Provisions 

The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) in every sub-contract, including 
procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued 
pursuant thereto.  The contractor shall take such action with respect to any sub-contractor or procurement 
as the contracting agency or USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for non-compliance. 
 
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with 
a sub-contractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request ITD enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the state and, in addition, the contractor may request the USDOT enter 
into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 1 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
June 9, 2014 
 
 
 
Michael C. Gridley, City Attorney 
City of Coeur d’Alene 
Legal Department 
710 East Mullan Avenue 
Coeur d’Alene, ID  83814 
 
Subject: Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study   
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This report summarizes my findings regarding the issue of noise ordinance compliance 
for Doyle’s Warehouse, located at 651 W. Dalton Avenue in Coeur d’Alene, Idaho.   
These findings are based on ambient noise measurements conducted over a 24 hour time 
period at the north property line beginning at 5 PM on May 28, 2014. 
 
Noise Ordinance 
 
The city noise ordinance is codified in Section 17.07.120, where it specifies that the use 
of any property shall not create a measured sound level on residentially zoned property in 
excess of 65 dBA during the day (7 AM to 10 PM) and 55 dBA at night.  There are no 
duration limits on the specified noise levels, so presumably a single violation could occur 
in as brief a time as 1 second. 
 
Site Conditions 
 
Photo 1 presents an aerial photo showing the vicinity of the noise study.  Doyle’s 
Warehouse is located on the south side of West Park Avenue, just west of the Candlelight 
Christian Fellowship Church.  The Skate Plaza Roller Rink and Schaffer’s Towing are 
located immediately south of Doyle’s Warehouse on the north side of West Dalton 
Avenue.  There are single family residences on the north side of West Park Avenue and 
to the west of Doyle’s Warehouse parking lot.  There is a building with a blue roof 
southwest of Doyle’s Warehouse in the center of a large parking area between West Park 
Avenue and West Dalton Avenue.  From my site observations, this is where most of the 
employees of Doyle’s Warehouse park their cars.  Much of this parking lot has been 
paved since this aerial photo was taken, and an 8-ft. high block wall has also been erected 
along the north and west sides of the parking lot. 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 2 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
Photo 1.  Aerial photo near Doyle’s Warehouse showing noise measurement locations. 

 
 
Noise Measurements 
 
Ambient noise measurements were taken at the two locations shown in Photo 1.  Position 
1 is at the west property line, approximately 105 feet south of West Park Avenue on the 
west side of the utility right of way (approximately 28 feet west of the block wall).  The 
data was collected with a Bruel & Kjaer model 2270 sound level meter using the BZ-
7224 data logging software.  The measurement microphone was positioned on top of a 
PVC pole just above the top of the existing fence as shown in Photos 2A and 2B.  The 
measurement microphone was fitted with a Bruel & Kjaer model UA 1650 windscreen to 
shield the microphone from wind and protect the microphone from brief periods of light 
rainfall.  The sound level meter and battery pack were housed in a weather-tight case 
located on the ground (and covered with grass to reduce visibility from the street) below 
the measurement microphone and chained to the existing metal fence post for security. 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 3 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo 2A & 2B.  Pos. 1 measurement microphone (see arrows pointing to windscreen). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 4 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

Ambient noise measurements were 
also taken at Position 2, in the 
wooded area between Highway 95 
and the existing homes on North 
Troon Street.   A Bruel & Kjaer 
model 2238 data logging sound 
level meter was used to collect data 
at this location.  This measurement 
location was not used to assess 
noise impacts from Doyle’s 
Warehouse, but rather to be used to 
help distinguish if a specific noise 
measured at Position 1 was 
generated by traffic on Highway 
95 as opposed to activity on 
Doyle’s Warehouse property.  The 
measurement microphone was 
positioned 16 feet above grade on a 
PVC pole secured to an existing 
tree (see Photo 3 at right).  Both 
the Position 1 and Position 2 sound 
level meters were synchronized in 
time and calibrated with the same 
Bruel & Kjaer model 4230 
portable acoustic calibrator immediately prior to the start of the noise measurements. 
 
Measurement Results 
 
Figures 1A through 1D present the measured A-weighted sound pressure level at Position 
1.  Each data point represents a 1 second average sound level (Leq).  Each graph presents 
6 hours of data, so each graph contains 21,600 individual noise measurements in time.  
The solid red line represents the maximum allowable noise level specified by the noise 
ordinance.  Over the entire 24 hour time period, 86,400 noise measurements (each 
representing a 1- second average sound level) were recorded.  Taking into consideration 
all sounds (including aircraft, birds chirping, and barking dogs, etc.), the noise level 
exceeded 55 dBA 0.1% of the time.  That is to say, 99.9% of the time the noise level was 
at or below 55 dBA.  The loudest sources of noise that were recorded at Position 1were: 
dogs barking and birds chirping near the measurement microphone.  The peaks displayed 
in Figures 1A through 1D represent identifiable noise events that exceeded 55 dBA for at 
least 1 second.  These noise events were identified either by direct visual observation or 
by listening to the audio recording.  Some events (e.g., aircraft, birds, motorcycles, sirens, 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 5 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

and vehicles on streets) could easily be identified as not coming from the Doyle’s 
Warehouse property.  Other events, such as truck noise and unidentifiable sounds may or 
may not be coming from the Doyle’s Warehouse property. 
 
As you can see from Figures 1A through 1D, the measured noise level rarely exceeded 
the noise ordinance limit.  During the first 6 hours (from 5 PM to 11 PM) the noise level 
exceeded the noise ordinance limit for the first 5 minutes due to the dog barking on the 
other side of the fence from the measurement microphone.  It again exceeded the limit for 
3 minutes beginning at 6:57:08 PM during a period of heavy rain.  (The noise was rain 
falling on the microphone windscreen and the fence).  There were also two occasions 
(7:49 PM and 9:22 PM) where trucks on the local streets briefly generated a noise level 
above the noise ordinance limit.  These truck noise events were not verified by visual 
observation, but rather by listening to the audio recordings.  There was also a brief event 
at 10:05 PM caused by me opening up and closing the instrument case to check the sound 
level meter.  A few other events are noted in Figure 1A which might be of interest, 
including a noisy motorcycle, a truck using its compression breaks (noted as JB* in 
Figure 1A), and a noisy car.  All of these were below the noise ordinance limit for that 
time of day.  There were no known violations of the noise ordinance due to activities at 
Doyles Warehouse during this 6-hour time period. 
  
Figure 1B presents the measured sound level at Position 1 during the second 6 hours 
(from 11 PM to 5 AM).  As you can see, there were only 3 events that exceeded the 55 
dBA nighttime noise limit.  The first was an airplane at 3:28 AM, the second was heavy 
rainfall for a 2 minute period beginning at 3:48 AM, and the third was birds chirping 
between 4:00 AM and 4:10 AM.  Actually, the birds began chirping around 3:30 AM and 
this continued unto about 4:12 AM with short 1 or 2 minute breaks at 3:54 AM and 4:10 
AM, but most of the bird chirping sound was below the noise ordinance limit.  Again, 
there were no known violations of the noise ordinance due to activities at Doyles 
Warehouse during this second 6-hour time period. 
 
Figure 1C presents the measured sound level at Position 1 during the third 6 hours (from 
5 AM to 11 AM).  As you can see, there were only 7 events that exceeded the noise 
ordinance limit.  The first was caused by me checking the sound level meter at 5:49 AM.  
The second was an impact noise from an unknown source at 6:23 AM.  The third was 
caused by a brief period of heavy rain at 6:30 AM.  The fourth and fifth events were 
sounds generated by trucks from unknown locations at 6:43 AM and 6:51 AM.  I was 
visually monitoring the site from the south property line during this time period, and I 
saw no truck activity on Doyle’s property between 6:40 AM and 6:55 AM.  The final two 
events were caused by airplanes at 9:15 AM and 9:31 AM.  Based on this data, there 
were no known violations of the noise ordinance due to activities at Doyles Warehouse 
during this 6-hour time period, although the impact noise at 6:23 AM is in question. 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 6 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
Figure 1D presents the measured sound level at Position 1 during the final 6 hours (from 
11 AM to 5 PM).  There were only 4 events that exceeded the 65 dBA noise ordinance 
limit during this time period.  The first occurred at 11:31 AM when a Waste Management 
garbage collection truck drove east down West Park Avenue.  The second event occurred 
at 12:18 PM when a bird landed very close to the measurement microphone and began 
chirping for a couple of minutes.  Maximum noise levels of the chirping bird exceeded 80 
dBA, so the bird must have been within 3 feet of the microphone.  The third event was 
caused by an eastbound semi truck on West Dalton Avenue at 12:27 PM.  This truck 
continued on to Highway 95, and did not turn into the project site.  The final event that 
exceeded the noise ordinance limit was a barking dog at 4:37 PM.  The maximum sound 
level of the barking dog was above 75 dBA, so it was likely within 25 feet of the 
measurement microphone.  As you can see from Figure 1D, there were several other 
events of note, all with maximum sound levels that were below the 65 dBA daytime 
limit.  These events included a 63 dBA jake brake noise from an eastbound truck on West 
Dalton Avenue at 11:51 AM, a noisy (60 dBA) motorcycle at 1:13 PM, a 63 dBA siren 
from Highway 95 at 1:56 PM, various airplanes, and a Waste Management truck picking 
up and returning a waste dumpster near the building with the blue roof.  Photo 4 (below) 
shows the truck sliding the dumpster off the truck bed onto the ground.  The arrow points 
to the dumpster.  It is interesting to note that there was no loud impact sound when the 
dumpster hit the ground.  It was a very quiet operation, other than the engine noise of the 
truck. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo 4.  
Waste 
Management 
truck 
unloading 
dumpster. 
 
 
 
 
 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 7 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

Based on the data presented in Figures 1A through 1D, coupled with my visual 
observations and my review of the audio recordings, I could find no confirmed violations 
of the noise ordinance by activities on the Doyle’s Warehouse property.  It appears that 
there was very little activity prior to 6:00 AM on May 29, confirmed by the fact that the 
noise level never once exceeded 55 dBA from any noise source (other than me checking 
my instruments) between the hours of 10 PM and 6 AM.  I made continuous visual 
observations of the site from the south side of West Dalton Avenue from 4 AM until 7 
AM, and I noted the activity shown in Table 1. 
 

Table 1.  Confirmed visual activity and measured maximum noise level at Position 1. 
 
Time Description of Activity Max. Noise Level  
4:10 Pickup enters site from south entrance 48.8 dBA 
4:16 Semi-truck leaves site, turns east to 95 53.5 dBA 
4:47 Semi-truck leaves site, turns west on W. Dalton Ave. 50.4 dBA 
5:03 Semi-truck leaves site, turns turns east to 95 47.6 dBA 
5:06 Garbage truck eastbound on W. Dalton Ave. 46.9 dBA 
5:09 Car enters site, Garbage truck eastbound on Dalton  49.6 dBA 
5:30 Panel truck leaves site, turns west on W. Dalton Ave. 47.8 dBA 
5:54 Car enters site and parks in center of parking area 48.8 dBA 
5:55 Another car enters site and parks in center of parking area 50.3 dBA 
6:10 Semi-truck enters site from south entrance 46.2 dBA 
6:38 Semi-truck leaves site, turns east to 95 51.1 dBA 
 
 
Note that none of the confirmed visual events in Table 1 created a noise level at Position 
1 above 55 dBA, and none of these events correlate in time with the three events that did 
exceed the 55 dBA limit between 6 AM and 7 AM.   
 
Figure 1E presents the measured ambient noise level at Position 1 for the 6:00 AM to 
7:00 AM time period.  The light blue line presents the measured noise level at Position 2 
near Highway 95.  As you can see, the events at Position 1 do not correlate with any high 
level events at Position 2, so the source of these events is not on Highway 95.  If you 
click on the speaker icon you can hear these recorded sounds on your computer.  The 
audio quality is best if you listen with headphones.  Because there was no visual 
confirmation of truck activity on the Doyle’s Warehouse property, it is highly likely that 
the truck sounds were created by trucks (or other vehicles that sound like trucks) on West 
Park Avenue (behind the 8-ft high block wall from my viewpoint on the south side of 
West Dalton Avenue).  If that is the case, then these events would not constitute a 
violation of the noise ordinance, because the source is not on Doyle’s Warehouse 
property. 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 8 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
Discussion 
 
Although this study did not find any noise events from activity at Doyle’s Warehouse that 
exceeded the Coeur d’Alene noise ordinance, this does not mean that such events are not 
possible.  During my visit I saw only one truck on the west side of the building with the 
blue roof, and that was the waste management truck circling the blue building after 
picking up and dropping off the dumpster in the middle of the day.  If that activity (or any 
truck activity west of the building with the blue roof) had taken place during the 
nighttime hours, the 55 dBA noise ordinance limit would almost certainly have been 
exceeded at Position 1.  It is my understanding from communication from the neighbors 
that several delivery trucks (including trucks with trailer mounted refrigeration units) 
would park relatively close to the west property line prior to the construction of the block 
wall.  This was not the case during this study.  It appears to me that with the new block 
wall, Doyle’s Warehouse can stay in compliance with the noise ordinance simply by 
keeping all trucks at least 150 feet from the west property line during the 10 PM to 7 AM 
nighttime hours. 
 
I should also point out that the measured 24-hour average day-night sound level (Ldn) at 
Position 1 is 53.9 dBA.  The Ldn is a single number metric (that takes into account all 
sounds received over a 24-hour period) used by the federal government to assess 
environmental noise regarding land use decisions.  In general, sites with an annual 
average Ldn of 65 dBA or less are generally considered suitable for residential 
development without restriction.  Sites with an annual average Ldn greater than 75 dBA 
are considered too noisy for residential development.  An exterior Ldn less than 55 dB is 
generally regarded as a relatively quiet neighborhood.  This may be one of the reasons 
why there are neighbor complaints regarding the Doyle’s Warehouse trucking activities.   
Occasional unwanted loud sounds heard in an otherwise quiet neighborhood will usually 
not go unnoticed.  For this reason, I would expect noise complaints to be less likely at 
homes located closer to Highway 95, the most predominant noise source in the area.  As a 
point of reference, the measured Ldn at Position 2 was 64.9 dBA. 
 
One final point.  I also took noise measurements at the sidewalk next to the home at the 
intersection of North Dunmoore Street and West Park Avenue.  This location is directly 
across the street from several wall louvers as shown in Photo 5 on the next page of this 
report.  The measured noise level was 52 dBA at the neighbor’s property line 
(approximately 80 feet north of the louvers), which is 3 dBA below the 55 dBA nighttime 
noise ordinance limit.  
 
 
 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 9 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo 5.  Wall 
mounted louvers 
on the north side 
of Doyle’s 
Warehouse. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
In summary, this study found no violations of the Coeur d’Alene noise ordinance due to 
activities at Doyle’s Warehouse during the 24-hour noise measurement period.  In 
addition, I believe that future violations are unlikely provided that trucks are kept at least 
150 feet from the west block wall during the nighttime hours.  This conclusion regarding 
future violations could change if a large number of trucks with refrigeration units are 
parked in the area, depending upon the precise location of the trucks and the type and 
noise level of the individual refrigeration units. 
 
If you have any questions or comments concerning these findings, do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 
Very truly yours, 
JGL Acoustics, Inc. 
 

 
 
Jerry G. Lilly, P.E., FASA 
President 
Member INCE, ASHRAE, ASTM, NCAC 



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 10 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM 10:00 PM 11:00 PM

A-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

So
un

d 
Pr

es
su

re
 L

ev
el

 (d
BA

)

Time of Day (May 28, 2014)

Doyle's Warehouse Noise Study
Figure 1A.  Ambient noise at Position 1

Motorcycle

Barking Dog

Heavy Rain

Noisy Car
Truck on Street

Jake Brakes

Truck on Street

JB*

JGL Check

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

11:00 PM 12:00 AM 1:00 AM 2:00 AM 3:00 AM 4:00 AM 5:00 AM

A-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

So
un

d 
Pr

es
su

re
 L

ev
el

 (d
BA

)

Time of Day (May 28 - 29, 2014)

Doyle's Warehouse Noise Study
Figure 1B.  Ambient noise at Position 1

Airplane
Heavy Rain

Birds



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 11 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
  

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

5:00 AM 6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM

A-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

So
un

d 
Pr

es
su

re
 L

ev
el

 (d
BA

)

Time of Day (May 29, 2014)

Doyle's Warehouse Noise Study
Figure 1C.  Ambient noise at Position 1

2 Airplanes

JGL Checking Meter

Impact Noise 

Heavy Rain

Truck 

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM

A-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

So
un

d 
Pr

es
su

re
 L

ev
el

 (d
BA

)

Time of Day (May 29, 2014)

Doyle's Warehouse Noise Study
Figure 1D.  Ambient noise at Position 1

Bird on Fence

WM Truck

JB*

Airplane

Bird

Truck

Airplane

Motorcycle

Noisy Cars

Siren on 95
Airplane

WM Truck

Airplane

Dog Barks

Airplanes



Coeur d’Alene Warehouse Noise Study 
June 9, 2014 
Page 12 of 12 

 
5266 NW Village Park Drive  (425) 649-9344 (voice) 
Issaquah, WA  98027  (425) 649-0737 (fax) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

End of Report 

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

6:00 AM 6:10 AM 6:20 AM 6:30 AM 6:40 AM 6:50 AM 7:00 AM

A-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

So
un

d 
Pr

es
su

re
 L

ev
el

 (d
BA

)

Time of Day (May 29, 2014)

Doyle's Warehouse Noise Study
Figure 1E.  Ambient Noise at Position 1

Impact Noise
(56 dBA)

Heavy Rain
(58.2 dBA) Truck

Truck
(58.0 dBA)

Truck
(56.2 dBA)



6.96



11.664



10.752



21.072


	Agenda 07-01-14 - long
	SR - S-4-12 NIC Final PlatApproval
	SR - Landings @ Waterford 12th Add
	SR - Interstate Addition
	SR - Habor house concession
	SR - 2014 Open Trench Bid Results
	SR - Handshake Prod Renewal (2012-2015)
	SR - NIC SRO
	SR - SRO SD271 2014-2015
	student rep appts_0001-1
	SR - Ramsey Road Deannexation Request
	SR - Ramsey Road De-Annex Map
	SR - Welch Comer 4corner-blm master plan funding
	Doyle's CoeurdAlene Warehouse Noise Study Report



